
 

 

 
4th September, 2023 
 
To   
The Manager  
Department of Corporate Services 
BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai- 400 001 
Scrip Code: 509635 
 

 
 
The Manager – Listing 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, ‘G’ Block, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400 051 
SYMBOL: HINDCOMPOS 

Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Sub:  Submission of copy of the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 along with the 

Notice of 59th Annual General Meeting of Hindustan Composites Limited, pursuant to 
the provisions of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we submit herewith the notice of 59th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company along with the copy of Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23. 
 
The 59th Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Friday, 29th September, 2023 
at 11.45 a.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing ("VC") / Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM"), 
without physical presence of the Members at a common venue in terms of the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and General Circular No. Nos. 10/2022 dated 28th 
December, 2022 read with General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020, 17/2020 dated 
13th April, 2020, 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 and 02/2022 dated 5th May, 2022 issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
 
The same is being dispatched to the shareholders of the Company by the permitted mode(s). 
 
The same is also available on the website of the Company viz. at www.hindcompo.com and on 
the website of CDSL viz. at www.evotingindia.com. 
 
Kindly take the above on your record.  
 

Thanking You, 
 

Yours faithfully, 
 

For Hindustan Composites Limited 
 
 
 
 
Ravi Vaishnav 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Membership No.: A34607 
 
Encl: as above 































































































































A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 2 - 2 3
stSTANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31  MARCH, 2023

(₹. In Lakhs)

Note No.

As at
st

31  March, 2023

As at 
st

31  March, 2022

I ASSETS

Non-current assets

  (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 11,031.59

               

11,276.87

              

  (b) Capital Work in Progress 1.1 19.65

                       

-

                          

  (c) Intangible assets 2 73.99

                       

59.87

                      

  (d) Intangible assets under development 2.1 9.18

                         

-

                          

  (e) Financial assets

       (i) Investments 3 77,272.88

               

75,962.10

              

  (ii) Loans 4 225.00

                     

1,750.00

                 

       (iii) Other financial assets 5 56.83

                       

67.75

                      

  (f) Other non-current assets 6 25.45

                       

71.36

                      

Total non-current assets 88,714.57

               

89,187.95

              

Current assets

  (a) Inventories 7 1,350.44

                  

1,351.24

                 

  (b) Financial assets

        (i) Investments 8 3,434.69

                  

3,632.57

                 

        (ii) Trade receivables 9 3,965.80

                  

3,749.86

                 

        (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 68.93

                       

245.83

                    

        (iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 11 83.92

                       

35.41

                      

        (v) Loans 12 675.00

                     

478.24

                    

        (vi) Other financial assets 13 1,221.64

                  

1,045.63

                 

  (c)  Current tax assets (Net) 14 205.40

                     

120.86

                    

  (d)  Other current assets 15 307.17

                     
322.12

                    

Total current assets 11,312.99
               

10,981.76
              

Non-current assets classified as held for sale 2.2 -                           112.99                     
Total Assets 1,00,027.56            1,00,282.70            

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

  (a) Equity Share capital 16 738.45

                     

738.45

                    
  (b) Other Equity 17 91,554.00

               

91,195.57

              

Total equity 92,292.45

               

91,934.02

              

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

  (a) Financial liabilities

        (i) Borrowings 18 11.52

                       

19.48

                      

  (b) Provisions 19 305.98

                     

346.96

                    

  (c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 44 2,795.83

                  

3,270.48

                 

  (d) Other non current liabilities 20 103.89

                     

92.69

                      

Total non-current liabilities 3,217.22

                  

3,729.61

                 

Current liabilities

  (a) Financial liabilities

        (i) Borrowings 21 89.21

                       

10.86

                      

        (ii) Trade payables 22

        - total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 54.21 79.95

                      

        - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3,861.55 4,163.93

        (iii) Other financial liabilities 23 92.93 65.44

  (b) Other current liabilities 24 236.49 148.85

  (c) Provisions 25 183.50 150.04

                    

Total current liabilities 4,517.89 4,619.07

                 

Total Equity and Liabilities 1,00,027.56

            

1,00,282.70

           

Significant accounting policies A -

                           

-

                          

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements B (1 - 55)

Particulars
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As per our attached report of even date           
For Lodha & Company

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. -  301051E
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st STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2023

(₹. In Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended

Note No.
st

31  March, 2023
st

31  March, 2022

I Revenue from operations 26 28,268.76

              

23,263.96

             

II Other income 27 84.62

                      

37.79

                     

III Total Income ( I + II) 28,353.38

              

23,301.75

             

IV Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 28 13,279.00

              

10,598.15

             

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 29 68.03

                      

(83.35)

                    

Employee benefits expense 30 3,879.32

                 

3,605.88

                

Finance costs 31 12.67

                      

7.80

                       

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1 & 2 872.93

                    

856.36

                   

Other expenses 32 6,981.78

                 

5,845.48

                

Total Expenses 25,093.73

              

20,830.32

             

V Profit before tax ( III - IV) 3,259.65

                 

2,471.43

                

VI Tax Expense: 44

Current tax 515.99

                    

308.00

                   

Deferred tax (24.16)

                     

3.27

                       

Tax expense relating to earlier years 20.55

                      

-

                         

Total Tax Expense 512.38

                    
311.27

                   

VII Profit for the year 2,747.27
                 

2,160.16
                

VIII Other Comprehensive Income

A. (i)   Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (470.06)                   7,708.51                 
    (ii)  Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 44 (9.36)

                       
1,024.14

                B. (i)  Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (1,847.56)

               
(1,402.21)

                  (ii)  Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 44 233.52

                    

831.24

                   
IX Total Comprehensive Income for the year (VII + VIII) 653.81

                    

10,321.84

             
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 5 each (Basic and Diluted) 37 18.60

                      

14.63

                     

Significant accounting policies A

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements B (1 - 55)

Particulars
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A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 2 - 2 3
stSTATEMENT OF STANDALONE CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

(₹. In Lakhs)

Year Ended Year Ended
st

31  March, 2023
st

31  March, 2022

A Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before tax 3,259.65 2,471.43

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation and amortization expense 872.93

                          

856.36

                            

Fair valuation of investments through profit and loss (251.67)

                         

(269.58)

                          

Profit on sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (net) (811.86)

                         

(921.17)

                          

Interest Income (3,342.92)

                     

(3,182.01)

                       

Interest Income on Income Tax Refund (18.96)

                           

-

                                  

Dividend Income (232.54)

                         

(251.93)

                          

Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (58.98)

 

(17.38)

                             

Loss on Sale/discard of Property, Plant and Equipment 29.96

                            

24.11

                              

Provision for doubtful debts -

                                

72.95

                              

Balances no longer payable written back -

                                

(7.76)

                               

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (61.48)

                           

(94.81)

                             

Interest expenditure 12.66

                            

7.80

                                

Operating profit before working capital changes (603.21)

                         

(1,311.99)

                       

Adjustment for

(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivable (215.95)

                         

440.76

                            

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets 10.92

                            

(11.07)

                             

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Non Current Assets 45.91

                            

(33.44)

                             

(Increase)/Decrease in other receivable (44.43)

                           

30.28

                              

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 0.80

                              

(164.85)

                          

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets (57.77)

                           

197.94

                            

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current Assets 2.02

                              
(36.64)

                             

(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables (329.12)
                         

295.62
                            

(Decrease)/Increase in long term provosions (40.98)                           28.98                               
(Decrease)/Increase in short term provosions 33.46

                            
(66.41)

                             (Decrease)/Increase in other current financial liabilities 27.49

                            
(45.52)

                             (Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities 87.64

                            

(2.33)

                               
(Decrease)/Increase in other non current liabilities 11.20

                            

5.18

                                

Cash generated from/(used in) operations (1,072.12)

                     

(673.49)

                          

Add/(Deduct) :

Dividend Received 232.54

                          

251.93

                            

Interest Received 3,224.69

                       

3,292.70

                        

Direct taxes paid (net) (815.55)

                         

(629.21)

                          

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 1,569.56

                       

2,241.93

                        

B Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (707.10)

                         

(712.28)

                          

Proceeds on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 178.49

                          

25.14

                              

Purchase of Investments (18,500.21)

                   

(20,177.48)

                     

Proceeds on sale of Investments 15,603.05

                    

17,338.92

                      

Inter-Corporate Deposits Placed (800.00)

                         

(360.00)

                          

Inter-Corporate Deposits Redeemed 2,125.00

                       

1,615.00

                        

Fixed Deposit Redeemed -

                                

1,000.00

                        

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (2,100.77)

                     

(1,270.70)

                       

C Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds/(repayment) from long-term borrowings (net) (7.95) 15.43

                              

Proceeds/(repayment) from short-term borrowings (net) 78.36 (19.42)

                             

Dividend paid (295.38) (295.38)

                          

Interest paid (12.66) (7.80)

                               

Net Cash generated from/(used in) financing activities (237.63)

                         

(307.17)

                          

D Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C) (768.84)

                         

664.06

                            

Particulars

Cash and Cash equivalents

At the beginning of the year 1,397.76

                       

733.70

                            

At the end of the year (Refer note below) 628.92

                          

1,397.76

Note :  The Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents include investment in Liquid Mutual fund units at cost of ₹. 559.97 lakhs  (Previous Year ₹. 1151.93 lakhs)

Significant accounting policies A
See accompanying notes to the financial statements B (1 - 55)

62

                       

                  

                       
                     

                     

As per our attached report of even date           
For Lodha & Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Hindustan Composites Limited

Firm Registration No. -  301051E

R.P. Baradiya
Raghu Mody

Partner                                                      

Chairman

Membership No. 44101

(DIN No. 00053329)

P.K. Choudhary

Managing Director

(DIN No. 00535670)

Place: Mumbai Sunil Jindal

Chief Financial Officer
th

Date: 26  May 2023



A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 2 - 2 3

                             

                           

                           

                        

                                   

                           
                              
                               
                               
                                
                              
                                 
                        

                             
                              
                              
                               
                          

 
                            

                              

                             

 
                              

 
                             

 

                             

 

                               

 

                                

 

                          

 
                            

                        

                          

                        

                          

                              

                     

                      

                          
                        

                                               

                               
                              

                           

                                

                           

                             

                            

                        

stSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

stSTATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

(a) Equity Share Capital

(b) Other Equity
(₹. In Lakhs)

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

General 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Debt
instruments

Equity 
Instruments

Others - 
Acturial 

gain/ (loss)

stBalance as at 31  March, 2021 57.70

              

62,050.13

             

8,897.07

          

2,479.85

            

7,924.64

            

(240.28) 81,169.11

Profit for the year -

                  

-

                         

2,160.16

          

-

                     

-

                     

- 2,160.16

Other comprehensive income for the year (Net) -

                  

-

                         

-

                   

(570.97)

              

8,810.89

            

- 8,239.92

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (Net) -
                  

-
                         

-
                   

-
                     

-
                     

(78.24) (78.24)

Amount transferred in respect of realised gain (Net) -
                  

-
                         

1,591.53
          

-
                     

(1,591.53)
          

- -

Dividend paid during the year -

                  

-

                         

(295.38)

            

-

                     

-

                     

- (295.38)

Transfer to General reserve -

                  

2,000.00

               

(2,000.00)

        

-

                     

-

                     

- -

stBalance as at 31  March, 2022 57.70

              

64,050.13

             

10,353.38

       

1,908.88

            

15,144.00

         

(318.52) 91,195.57

Profit for the year -

                  

-

                         

2,747.27

          

-

                     

-

                     

- 2,747.27

Other comprehensive income for the year (Net) -

                  

-

                         

-

                   

(1,614.04)

          

(428.44)

              

- (2,042.48)

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (Net) -

                  

-

                         

-

                   

-

                     

-

                     

(50.98) (50.98)

Amount transferred in respect of realised gain (Net) - -

                         

1,183.10

          

-

                     

(1,183.10)

          

- -

Dividend paid during the year - - (295.38) - -

 

- (295.38)

Transfer to General reserve - 2,000.00 (2,000.00) - -

 

- -

stBalance as at 31  March, 2023 57.70 66,050.13 11,988.37 294.84 13,532.46 (369.50) 91,554.00

Refer note 17 for nature and purpose of the reserves.

Significant accounting policies
A

See accompanying notes to the standalone financial statements
B (1 - 55)

Particulars

Reserves and surplus Items of other comprehensive income

Total

(₹. In Lakhs)

Particulars Amount

stBalance as at 31  March, 2021                            738.45 
Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors                                     -   

stRestated balance as at 31  March, 2021                            738.45 

Changes in equity share capital during the year                                     -   

stBalance as at 31  March, 2022                            738.45 

Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors                                     -   
stRestated balance as at 31  March, 2022                            738.45 

Changes in equity share capital during the year                                     -   
stBalance as at 31  March, 2023                            738.45 
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Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter 
referred to as the 'Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the 
Act') read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
standards) Rules, 2015 and amendment rules issued there 
after.
     
The financial statements of the Company are prepared on the 
accrual basis of accounting and historical cost convention 
except for the following material items that have been measured 
at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS:

I)    Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at Fair 
       value (refer note no. 43 financial instruments)    
ii)    Defined benefit employee plan (refer note no. 42)

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non 
current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other 
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 
Based on the nature of products and the time between 
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its 
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates and judgments:

The preparation of the financial statements requires the 
Management to make judgments,estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the reporting period. The recognition, measurement, 
classification or disclosure of an item or information in the 
financial statements is made relying on these estimates.

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the 
financial statements are continuously evaluated by the 
Company and are based on historical experience and various 
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future 
events) that the Company believes to be reasonable under the 
existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from those 
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised 
prospectively in current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgements and key source of 
estimation uncertainty

The Company is required to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities 
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates 

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES FORMING 
PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 

STENDED 31  MARCH, 2023

Notes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 
st31  March, 2023

CORPORATE OVERVIEW:

Hindustan Composites Limited ("the Company") is a public limited 
company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provision of 
the Companies Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange
 (NSE) of India.

The registered office of the Company is located at Peninsula Business 
thPark, A Tower, 8  Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower

 Parel, Mumbai 400 013 (Maharastra). 

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and 
marketing of fibre based friction material, consisting of Brake Liners, 
Roll Lining, Brake Block, Clutch Facing etc and investments.

Depreciation / amortisation and useful lives of property
 plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are 
depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, 
after taking into account its estimated residual value. 
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and 
residual values of the assets annually in order to determine 
the amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded 
during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual 
values are based on the Company's historical experience 
with similar assets and take into account anticipated 
technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation for 
future periods is revised if there are significant changes 
from previous estimates. Depreciation on the fixed assets 
added / disposed off/ discarded during the year is provided 
on pro-rata basis with reference to the month of addition / 
disposal / discarding.

 Provisions and liabilities

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when 
it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of 
funds resulting from past operations or events that can 
reasonably be estimated. The timing of recognition requires 
appl icat ion of  judgement to exist ing facts and 
circumstances which may be subject to change. The 
amounts are determined by discounting the expected future 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may 
arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. 
Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of 
crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are 
treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are 
disclosed in the notes but are not recognized in the financial 
statements.

 Measurement of defined benefit obligations

The present value of the defined benefit obligations 
depends on a number of factors that are determined on an 
actuarial basis. The assumptions used in determining the 
net interest cost/(income) for defined benefit plans include 
the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions will 
impact the carrying amount of defined benefit obligations.

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is carried at cost. All other items of property, plant 
and equipment are measured at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Costs 
include freight, import duties, non-refundable GST and other 
expenses directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
  

and associated assumptions are based on historical experience 
and
 other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the 
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision 
and future period, if the revision affects current and future 
periods. 

A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 2 - 2 3

a)

b)
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(b)

( c) 

(d)

c)
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when 
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance expenses are 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting 
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of property, plant and equipment which are not ready 
for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital 
work-in-progress.

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether 
there is any indication that any asset may be impaired. If any, 
such indication exists, the carrying value of such asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss is 
charged to profit and loss account. If at the balance Sheet date 
there is any deduction that a previously assessed impairment 
loss no longer exists, then such loss is reversed and the asset is 
restated to that effect.

Intangible assets:

Technical Know How and Computer software are stated at cost, 
less accumulated amortisation and impairments, if any.                       

Depreciation/ amortisation methods, estimated useful 
lives and residual value       

Depreciation is provided on a Straight Line Method, over the 
estimated useful lives of assets. Leasehold land is amortised 
over period of lease.  Leasehold improvements are amortised 
over the period of lease or estimated useful lives which ever is 
lower.

The company depreciates its property, plant and equipment 
over the useful life in the manner prescribed in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and management believe that useful lives 
of assets are same as those prescribed in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company amortizes computer software with a useful life 
using the straight-line method over the period of 6 years from 
the date of acquisition.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups comprising of assets and 
liabilities are classified as 'held for sale' when all of the following 
criteria's are met:

(I)   decision has been made to sell.
(ii)   the assets are available for immediate sale in its present  
       condition.
(iii)  the assets are being actively marketed and
(iv)  sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 
       12 months of the Balance Sheet date.

Subsequently, such non-current assets and disposal groups 
classified as 'held for sale' are measured at the lower of its 
carrying value and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current 
assets held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
            
As a lessee

Operating Lease

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and 

a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset. The 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified 
asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and the 
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from 
use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified 
asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the 
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted 
for any lease payments made on or before the commencement 
date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use 
assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and 
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-
of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from 
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful 
life of right-of-use asset. The Company measures the lease 
liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the 
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot 
be readily determined, the Company uses incremental 
borrowing rate. For short-term and low value leases, the 
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and deposits 
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and 
have an original maturity of three months or less, including 
money market deposits, commercial paper and investments. 
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current 
liabilities in the balance sheet.

Inventories:

Inventories of Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Stores and 
Spares and  Finished Goods are stated 'at cost or net realisable 
value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprise all cost of purchase, 
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.  Cost formula 
used is   'Weighted Average cost'.  Due allowance is estimated 
and made for defective and obsolete items, wherever 
necessary, based on the past experience of the Company.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets - Initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial 
assets other than trade receivables are initially recognised at 
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised 
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the 
statement of profit and loss.

 Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value 
through profit or loss on the basis of both (a) the entity's 
business model for managing the financial assets and 
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial 
asset.

Measured at amortised cost:

Financial assets are subsequently  measured at amortised 
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Equity instruments:

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at 
fair value. Where the Company's management has elected to 
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in 
other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Dividends from such investments are 
recognised in the Statement of  Profit and Loss as other income 
when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Impairment
 
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the 
expected credit losses associated with its financial assets 
carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The 
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there 
has been a signifi cant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified 
approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which 
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial 
recognition of the receivables. The impairment losses and 
reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or it transfers rights to receive cash flows from an asset, 
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and 
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor 
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, 
nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to 
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's 
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also 
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the 
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

On de-recognition of equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, 
the cumulative gain or loss previously reconised in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified from other equity to retain 
earning as a reclassification adjustment.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair 

 cost, if these financial assets are  held within a business 
module whose  objective is to hold  these assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 
the financial asset give rise on specified date to cash flows 
that are  solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.
 
 Measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVTOCI):
Financial assets are measured at FVTOCI, if these financial 
assets are held within a business model whose objective is 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give 
rise on specified dates to solely  payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling 
financial assets.

 Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Financial assets other than equity instrument are measured 
at FVTPL  unless it is measured at amortised cost or at 
FVTOCI on initial recognition. Such financial assets are 
measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, 
including interest income and dividend income if any, 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

value net of transaction costs for all financial liabilities not 
carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are 
subsequently measured at using EIR method. Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured 
at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition
 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in 
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments:

Derivative financial instruments such as future contracts are 
initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract 
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair 
value with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period when they arise.
 
Fair Value Measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, 
derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.
 
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either:
ü In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ü In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the 
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in 
their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into 
account a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation 
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole:
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ü Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities
 
ü Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable

ü Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the 
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has 
determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

 Borrowings:

Borrowings are initially recognised at  net of transaction costs 
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings 
using the effective interest method.
  
Borrowing costs:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is 
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use 
or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or 
sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they 
are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities:

Provisions for legal claims, volume discounts and returns are 
recognised when the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions 
are not recognised for future operating losses. The carrying 
amounts of provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date 
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
  
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood 
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by 
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is 
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to 
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be 
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's 
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate 
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.  

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a 
possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not 
require an outflow of resources or an obligation for which the f

Variable Consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, 
the company estimates the amount of consideration to 
which it will be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods 
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at 
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable 
that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur once 
associated uncertainties are resolved.  Some contracts 
with the customers provide them with a right to return and 
volume rebates. The right to return and volume rebates 
gives rise to variable consideration.

The amount of variable consideration is calculated by either 
using the expected value or the most likely amount 
depending on which is expected to better predict the 
amount of variable consideration. Consideration is also 
adjusted for the time value of money if the period between 
the transfer of goods or services and the receipt of payment 
exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing 
benefit either to the customer or the Company. If a contract 
contains more than one distinct good or service, the 
transaction price is allocated to each performance 
obligation based on relative stand-alone selling prices. If 
stand-alone selling prices are not observable, the Company 
reasonably estimates those revenue is recognized for each 
performance obligation either at a point in time or over time.

 Sale of goods:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the 
control of the goods passes to the buyer either at the time of 
dispatch or delivery or when the risk of loss transfers. Export 
sales are recognized based on the shipped on board date 
as per bill of lading, which is when substantial risks and 
rewards of ownership are passed to the customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is net of taxes and recovery of 
charges collected from customers like transport, packing 
etc. Provision is made for returns when appropriate. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration 
received or receivable and is net of price discounts, 
allowance for volume rebates and similar items.

Claims / Refunds not ascertainable with reasonable 
certainty are accounted for, on final settlement and are 
recognized as revenue.
 

future outcome cannot be ascertained with reasonable 
certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where 
the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made.

Revenue recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue, whenever control over 
distinct goods or services is transferred to the customer i.e. 
when the customer is able to direct the use of the transferred 
goods or services and obtains substantially all of the remaining 
benefits, provided a contract with enforceable rights and 
obligations exists and amongst others collectability of 
consideration is probable taking into account customer 's 
creditworthiness.
 
Revenue is the transaction price the Company expects to be 
entitled to. In determining the transaction price, the Company 
considers effects of variable consideration, the existence of 
significant financing contracts, noncash consideration and 
consideration payable to the customer, if any. The Company 
considers whether there are other promises in the contract that 
are separate performance obligations to which the transaction 
price needs to be allocated (e.g. warranties etc.).
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Employee Benefits:

The Company provides following post-employment plans:
(i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity
 
(ii) Defined contribution plans such as Provident fund                          

a)    Defined-benefit plan:

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect 
of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of defined 
benefit obligations at the end of the reporting period less fair 
value of the plan assets. The defined benefit obligations is 
calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit 
method.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net 
defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of 
profit and loss:
(a)  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-
       service costs, gains and losses on curtailment and non-
       routine settlements; and
 (b)  Net interest expense or income

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate 
to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and fair value 
of the plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit 
expenses in the statement of the profit & loss.

Re-measurement comprising of actuarial gains and losses 
arising from experience adjustment and changes in actuarial 
assumptions, the effect of asset excluding amounts included in 
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on 
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the 
net defined benefit liability) ceiling are recognised in the period 
in which they occur directly in Other comprehensive income. 
Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods.

b)    Defined-contribution plan:

Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company 
pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have 
any legal or informal obligation to pay additional sums. These 
comprise of contributions to the employees' provident fund with 
the government, superannuation fund and certain state plans 
like Employees' State Insurance and Employees' Pension 
Scheme. The Company's payments to the defined contribution 
plans are recognised as expenses during the period in which 
the employees perform the services that the payment covers.

c)    Other employee benefit

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within 
twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee 
renders the related services are recognised as a liability at the 
present value of the obligation as at the Balance sheet date 
based on an actuarial valuation.

Rendering of services:

Revenue from sale of services are recognized when the 
services are rendered.

 Investment Income:
 
Dividend income on investments is recognised when the 
right to receive dividend is established.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportionate basis 
taking into account the amounts invested and the rate of 
interest. For all financial instruments measured at 
amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the 
Effective interest rate method to the net carrying amount of 
the financial assets.

Foreign Currency Transaction:

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), 
which is company's functional and presentation currency.
 
Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to 
borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and 
loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and 
losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss as other 
income / miscellaneous expenses.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates 
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value 
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at 
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was 
determined.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net 
change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. 
Current and deferred taxes are recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss except when they relate to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 
in such case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.  

  
Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be 
payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in 
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.                           
Deferred income tax is recognised using the Balance Sheet 
approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are 
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences 
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises 
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the 
transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is 
probable that either future taxable profits or reversal of deferred 
tax liabilities will be available, against which the deductible 
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset shall be reviewed at 
the end of each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax 
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to 
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the 
deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when there is a 
legally enforceable right to off set current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same 
taxation authority.

Minimum Alternative Tax ('MAT') credit is recognised as an 
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence 
that the Company will pay normal income-tax during the 
specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes 
eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created 
by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss. The 
Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and 
writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the 
extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that 
Company will pay normal income-tax during the specified 
period.
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1961.                           

Segment  Reporting:

The Company has identified its Managing Director as the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker. Operating segments are reported in 
a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 
managing director of the Company. The Managing Director 
evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources 
as a whole.                          

Research and Development:

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Product 
development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical 
and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, 
further economic benefits are probable, the Company has an 
intention and ability to complete and use or sell the product and 
the costs can be measured reliably.  
  
 Earnings Per Share:

Basic EPS is arrived at based on net profit or (loss) after taxation 
available to equity shareholders to the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, 
after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive equity shares 
unless impact is anti-dilutive.

Contract balances:

   Trade Receivables:

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of 
consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only a passage of time is 
required to before payment of the consideration is due).

ii) Contract liabilities:
 
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services 
to a customer for which the company has received 
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the 
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the company 
transfer goods and services to the customer, a contract liability 
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is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due, 
whichever is earlier. Contract liabilities are recognised as 
revenue when the company performs under the contract.

 Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or 
amendments to the existing standards under Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to 
time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 – Presentat ion of  F inancia l  Statements
The amendments require companies to disclose their material 
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting 
policies. Accounting policy information, together with other 
information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to 
influence decisions of primary users of general purpose 
financial statements.                       

Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors
The definition of a “change in accounting estimates” has been 
replaced with a definition of “accounting estimates”. Accounting 
estimates are defined as “monetary amounts in financial 
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. 
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies 
require items in financial statements to be measured in a way 
that involves measurement uncertainty.                       

Ind  AS 12 – Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred 
tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning 
obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the Initial 
recognition exemption of Ind AS 12 so that it no longer applies to 
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable 
and deductible temporary differences. Accordingly, companies 
will need to  recognise a deferred tax asset and a  deferred tax 
liability for temporary differences arising on transactions such  
as initial recognition of a lease and a  decommissioning 
provision.

p)

q)

r)

s)

t)
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2 Intangible assets (₹ In Lakhs)

Gross Carrying Amount :

Balance as at 31�� March, 2021 31.57 31.57

Addi�ons 46.00 46.00

Adjustments / Disposals 1.13 1.13

Balance as at 31�� March, 2022 76.44 76.44

Addi�ons 27.22 27.22

Adjustments / Disposals 0.05 0.05

Balance as at 31�� March, 2023 103.61 103.61

Accumulated Deprecia�on :

Balance as at 31�� March, 2021 12.75 12.75

Amor�sa�on for the year 4.60 4.60

Adjustments / Disposals 0.78 0.78
Balance as at 31�� March, 2022 16.57 16.57

Amor�sa�on for the year 13.05 13.05

Adjustments / Disposals - -

Balance as at 31�� March, 2023 29.62 29.62

Net Carrying Amount :

Balance as at 31�� March, 2022 59.87 59.87

Balance as at 31�� March, 2023 73.99 73.99

2.1 Ageing of Intangible assets under development as at 31�� March, 2023. (₹ in lakhs)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years

Total

As at 31�� March , 2023

Projects in progress - Computer So�ware 9.18

                        

-

                          

-

                          

- 9.18

Projects temporarily suspended -

                          

- - - -

Total 9.18

                        

-

 

-

                          

- 9.18

As at 31�� March , 2022

Projects in progress - Computer So�ware -

                          

-

 

-

                          

- -

Projects temporarily suspended -

                          

-

 

-

                          

- -

Total -

                          

-

 

-

                          

- -

Notes:

(i) The Company has not revalued its intangible assets during the current year and previous year.

(ii) There are no intangible assets under development, where comple�on is overdue or has exceeds its cost compared to its 
     original plan.

2.2 Assets held for sale (₹ in lakhs)

Property, Plant and Equipment - Building - 112.99

Total - 112.99

 Descrip�on of the assets held for sale 
 As at 

31�� March, 2023 

 As at 

31�� March, 2022 

 Par�culars 
 Computer 

So�ware 
 Total 

Amount in Intangible assets under development for a period of

Descrip�on

st
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B. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS :

(₹ in Lakhs)

Particulars

3 Non Current Investments  (Refer note no. 40)

Equities

Equity instruments

Debt

Pass through certificates (PTC)

Preference shares

Government securities

Debentures and bonds

Real estate and debt funds

Total

4 Non Current Loans

Secured, considered good

Inter corporate deposits to related party * (Refer note no. 47 & 48)

Total
* Secured against mortgage of a property valued of Rs. 35.52 crore valued by an International Property Consultant

5 Non Current Other Financial Assets

Electricity deposits

Rent deposits

Other deposits*

Fixed Deposit with Banks having original maturity for more than twelve months

Margin money deposits with bank

Total

6 Other Non Current Assets

Capital advance

Total

7 Inventories  (Refer note no. A (f) for accounting policy on inventory)

Raw materials 

Raw materials - Goods in transit

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stores and spares

Total

8 Current Investments (Refer note no. 41)

Debt

Preference shares

Debentures and bonds

Real estate and debt funds

Mutual funds units

Total

9 Trade Receivables *

Unsecured, considered good

Due from a Related Party (Refer note no. 47)

Other Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered doubtful

                             727.55 

                                1.11                                   0.37 

                                     -                                     9.60 

                            213.08                              323.97 

                                  4.50 

                              25.45 

                              25.45                                 71.36 

                                71.36 

                                67.75 
* Includes water deposits, telephone deposits, gas deposits, MIDC and other deposits etc.

                              56.83 

                                4.50 

                            560.09                           1,154.62 

                        1,350.44                           1,351.24 

                            809.75 

                            108.53                              124.24 

                        2,326.71                           2,477.95 

                              45.73                                       -   

                            502.16                                       -   

                            217.97                              175.11 

                        75,962.10 

                              23.68 

                            225.00                           1,750.00 

                              20.27 

                                25.93 

                            225.00                           1,750.00 

                                19.34 

                      77,272.88 

                                8.38                                   8.38 

 As at   As at  
st31  March, 2023 st31  March, 2022

                        3,433.85 

                          7,226.07                         6,909.90 

                          1,694.91 

                      37,522.08                         40,317.64 

                        1,192.75 

                          3,518.05 

                        22,703.95                       28,214.30 

                             501.48                                      -   

                        3,434.69                           3,632.57 

                        3,934.16                           3,706.22 

                              31.64                                 43.64 

Other Trade Receivables - credit impaired
Total
Less: Provision for doubtful debts

Total

* Refer note no. 45 (c) for credit risk

                        3,965.80                           3,749.86 

                                72.95                                      -   

                                     -                                   72.95 
                        3,965.80                           3,822.81 

A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 2 - 2 3

     

st
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Information about major customers

Revenue from Composite Products to largest customers (greater than 10% of total sales) is ₹ 16,466.26 Lakhs (Previous Year ₹ 7,315.52 Lakhs)

stAgeing for trade receivables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at 31  March, 2023#

Total       3,185.34                    755.54                     1.63                 23.29                        -   

Less: Provision for doubtful debts

Total

                       -                       -   -

                    -   3,965.80

Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired

Particulars

                            -                            -                          -   

 -                             -                            -                          -   

 - 

Disputed trade receivables considered good

Disputed trade receivables which have significant 

increase in credit risk

Undisputed trade receivables which have significant 

increase in credit risk

Undisputed trade receivables considered good

Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired

Outstanding for following periods from due date

 -                             -                            -                          -                          -                       -   

                       -                       -   
-

                         -                          -   

-

      3,185.34                    755.54                     1.63                 23.29                        -                       -   3,965.80

 - 

Total

                  -                               -   

-                       -                          -   

 (₹ in Lakhs) 

More than 3

years2-3 years1-2 years

6 months -

1 year

Less than 6

monthsNot due

                    -   -

      3,185.34                    755.54                     1.63                 23.29                        -                       -   3,965.80

                       -                       -   -

                            -                            -                       -   

10

11

12

13

stAgeing for trade receivables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at 31  March, 2022#

#There are no unbilled dues

Particulars

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks

Cash on hand

Total

Other Bank Balances

Fixed deposit with bank

Other Balances

In Dividend Accounts

In Margin money

Total

Current Loans

Unsecured, considered good

Inter corporate deposits

Loans and advances to employees

Total

Other Current Financial Assets

Interest accrued on investments

Interest accrued on inter corporate / other deposits

Receivable on sale / redemptions of current investments

Security Deposit

Earnest Money Deposits

Other receivables*

Total

                              36.00                                       -   

                              50.00                                       -   

                                45.64 

                             478.24 

                                6.16                                   7.39 

                    -   3,749.86

                              68.93                              245.83 

                              33.92                                 23.87 

                            675.00                              475.00 

                              83.92                                 35.41 

* Includes Export Incentive, ECGC Premium etc.

Total

Total       3,035.93                    690.52                   16.24                   7.17                        -   

                  -                               -                            -                          -                          -   

                       -   

Undisputed trade receivables which have significant 
increase in credit risk

Undisputed trade receivables considered good       3,035.93                    690.52 

                    -   -

Less: Provision for doubtful debts                   -                               -                            -                   72.95                        -                       -   72.95

Disputed trade receivables considered good                   -                               -                            -                          -                          -                       -   -

Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired                   -                               -                            -                   72.95 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date

Not due

Less than 6

months

6 months -

1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years

      3,035.93                    690.52                   16.24                 80.12                        -                       -   3,822.81

-
Disputed trade receivables which have significant 
increase in credit risk

                  -                               -                            -                          -                          -                       -   

Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired

                       -                       -   3,749.86                  16.24                   7.17 

 (₹ in Lakhs) 

                                  1.64 

                              67.69                              244.19 

                                11.54 

                  -                               -                            -                          -                          -                       -   
-

                    -   72.95

                                     -   

                                1.24 

More than 3

years Total

st31  March, 2023 st31  March, 2022

                            233.95                              197.00 

 (₹ in Lakhs) 

                                4.30                                 18.24 

                        1,221.64                           1,045.63 

 As at   As at  

                                     -                                     3.24 

                              20.69 

                            920.54                              777.36 

                            675.00 

st
Notes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023
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14 Current tax assets

Advance Income Tax (Net of provision ₹. 116.37 lakhs, previous year ₹150.98 lakhs) 

Total

15 Other Current Assets

Balance with Government authorities

Advance to suppliers

Prepaid expenses

                            205.40                              120.86 

                            205.40 

                              83.96                                 55.16 

                             120.86 

                            220.18                              248.84 

                                3.03                                 18.12 

Total

16 Equity Share Capital

AUTHORISED

16,000,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 5 each

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP

14,769,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 5 each, fully paid-up

Total

(i) Details of shareholding more than 5% 

Particulars

% %

Rasoi Ltd. 41.65% 41.65%

Leaders Healthcare Ltd. 16.76% 16.76%

J L Morison (India) Ltd. 7.50% 7.50%

738.45                           738.45                             

800.00

                           

800.00

                            

                            307.17                              322.12 

st
As at 31  March, 2022

738.45                           738.45                             

No. of Shares 

                24,75,582 

                11,07,702 

                61,51,722 

st
As at 31  March,2023 

No. of Shares 

           61,51,722 

           24,75,582 

           11,07,702 

(ii) Details of shares held by promoters

Particulars
% %

(Class of Shares - Equity Shares) *

Rasoi Ltd. 41.65% 41.65%

Leaders Healthcare Ltd. 16.76% 16.76%

J L Morison (India) Ltd. 7.50% 7.50%

Surdas Trading & Mfg Co Limited 1.71% 1.71%

Goodpoint Advisory Services LLP 1.34% 1.34%

Lotus Udyog LLP 1.28% 1.28%

Pallawi Resources Private Limited (Formerly known as Pallawi Resources Limited) 1.22% 1.22%

Pallawi Trading And Mfg Co Limited 1.18% 1.18%

Axon Trading & Mfg Co Limited 0.73% 0.73%

Looklink Advisory Services LLP 0.65% 0.65%

Silver Trading And Services Limited 0.57% 0.57%

Noble Business Solutions Limited 0.38% 0.38%

* There is no change in % of holding during the current and previous financial year.

(iii) Rights attached to equity shares:

Particulars

Balance at the beginning of the year

Increase on account of share spilt
Bonus shares issued during the year

Balance at the end of the year

(v) For a period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date,the company has: 

Particulars

Bonus shares issued during the year

Bought back any shares issued  -

                56,304                      56,304 

             -   

             -   

2023

                 -   

                61,51,722 

             1,08,000                   1,08,000 

                96,000                      96,000 

                84,000                      84,000 

           24,75,582                 24,75,582 

-

The Company has onlyone class of equity shares havinga par value of ₹.5 each (Previous Year ₹.5each). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after paymentsto secured and
unsecured creditors, in proportion to their shareholding. 

Allotted shares on account of split in face
value from ₹10 per share to ₹ 5 per  share

                  -   

Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up 
pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash

                 -                -                     -                          -                                         -   

           11,07,702                 11,07,702 

             2,52,000                   2,52,000 

             1,98,000                   1,98,000 

st
As at 31  March, 2023 

st
As at 31  March, 2022

No. of Shares No. of Shares 

           61,51,722 

                  -                          -   

 As at 
st31  March, 2022

     1,47,69,000 1,47,69,000

                                      -   

1,47,69,000     1,47,69,000 

                       -   

                       -   

st As at 31  March
2022 2021 2020 2019

-

As at 
st31  March, 2023

(No. of Shares)(iv) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the       reporting period:

             1,89,720                   1,89,720 

             1,80,000                   1,80,000 

             1,74,000                   1,74,000 

- - - -
                       -                                         -                    -   
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17 Other Equity

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity balance.

A. Summary of Other Equity balance

Particulars

Capital Redemption Reserve

General Reserve

Retained Earnings

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

  - Fair value of Debt instruments through OCI

  - Fair value of Equity instruments through OCI

  - Remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Total

B. Nature and purpose of reserves

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Particulars

18 Non Current Borrowings (Refer note no. 35)

Term Loans

Secured

From Banks - Vehicle Loan

Total

                      91,554.00                         91,195.57 

                            (318.52)

                            294.84 

As at

                              11.52 

                              11.52 

 (₹. in lakhs) 

As at

st31  March, 2023

                          (369.50)

Capital Redemption Reserve: The Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buyback of equity shares from its General

Reserve.  The Capital Redemption Reserve can be utilised for issue of bonus shares

General Reserve: The  Company  has  transferred  a  portion  of  the  net  profit  before  declaring  dividend  to  general reserve.

st31  March, 2023

As at As at

                              57.70                                 57.70 

st31  March, 2022

                                19.48 

                                19.48 

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income: This represents the cumulative gains and losses arising on fair valuation of equity

instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Re-measurements of Net Defined Benefit Plans: Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually

achieved,and any changes in the liabilitiesover the year due to changes in actuarial assumptionsor experienceadjustmentswithin the plans, are

recognised subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

                      13,532.46                         15,144.00 

Debt Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income: The fair value change of the debt instruments measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income is recognised in Debt instrumentsthroughOther Comprehensive Income.Upon derecognition, the cumulativefair valuechanges
on the said instruments are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

                      66,050.13                         64,050.13 

                      11,988.37                         10,353.38 

                          1,908.88 

 (₹. in lakhs) 

st31  March, 2022

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other

distributions paid to shareholders. 

19 Non Current Provisions

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for defined benefit plan - gratuity

Total

20 Other Non Current Liabilities

Security Deposits

Total

21 Current Borrowings  (Refer note no. 35)

Term Loans

Secured

From Banks

 - Vehicle Loan

 - Working Capital Loan

Total

22 Trade Payables 

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro and small enterprises

Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors other than Micro and small enterprises

Total

                              81.26                                       -   

                                7.95                                 10.86 

                            100.07 

                            305.98                              346.96 

                            205.91                              183.05 

                            103.89                                 92.69 

                            103.89                                 92.69 

                        3,915.76                           4,243.88 

                              89.21                                 10.86 

                             163.91 

                              54.21                                 79.95 

                        3,861.55                           4,163.93 

st
Notes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023
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Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Particulars

(a) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting year;

(b)

(c)

(d) 

(e) 

(f)

stAgeing for trade payables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at 31  March, 2023#

st
Ageing for trade payables from the due date of payment for each of the category as at 31  March, 2022#

# There are no unbilled dues.

Particulars

23 Other Financial Liabilities

Unclaimed / Unpaid dividends

Capital Creditors

Total

24 Other Current Liabilities

Statutory Dues

Amountof furtherinterest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until suchdate

when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of

disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

 Nil  Nil 

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year;

Amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (whichhas been paid

but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appointed day during accounting year;

                                  2.11 

                              54.21 

 As at   As at  

                                79.95 

st
31  March, 2022

                                1.67 Interest accrued and due to any supplier at the end of accounting year;

st
31  March, 2023

                              33.92                                 23.87 

Note : The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as“ Micro and Small enterprises” on the basis of 

information available with Company.

 (₹. in lakhs) 

 As at  

                              92.93                                 65.44 

Particulars

Not due

Less than 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3

years Total

Undisputed dues- MSME

                            236.49                              148.85 

                                2.11                                   1.28 

3,915.76

                            -   

                              59.01                                 41.57 

 As at  

The Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’). The disclosure

pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows :

(₹. In Lakhs)

st
31  March, 2023

st
31  March, 2022

Total                 3,683.82                 231.94                        -                          -                       -   

Disputed dues - Others                             -                            -                          -                          -                       -   

Disputed dues - MSME                             -                            -                          -                          -                       -   -

3,861.55Undisputed dues - Others                 3,683.82                 177.73                        -                          -                       -   

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Not due

Less than 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3

years Total

Undisputed dues- MSME                             -                     79.95                        -                          -                       -   79.95

Undisputed dues - Others                 3,592.96                 562.54                   8.43                        -                       -   4,163.93

Total                 3,592.96                 642.49                   8.43                        -                       -   4,243.88

Disputed dues - MSME                             -                            -                          -                          -                       -   -

Disputed dues - Others                             -                            -                          -                          -                       -   -

 (₹. in lakhs) 

 (₹. in lakhs) 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

                  54.21                        -                          -                       -   54.21

 Nil  Nil 

 Nil  Nil 

-

Total

25 Current Provisions

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for defined benefit plan - gratuity

Total

                            236.49                              148.85 

                                29.92 

                            183.50                              150.04 

                              29.04 

                            154.46                              120.12 

st
Notes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023
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Particulars

26 Revenue From Operations

Sale of Products

Manufactured goods

Investment Income

Dividend

Interest

Net gain on sale / Fair valuation of investments through profit/(loss) *

Other Operating Income

Export Incentives

Marketing Fees & Royalty Income

Insurance Claim

Scrap Sale

Others

Total

st* Includes fair value gain /(loss)for the year ended 31  March, 2023 amounting to ₹ 251.67 lakhs, (Previous Year ₹ 269.58 lakhs)

27 Other Income

Foreign Exchange Gain (Net)

Rent

Interest on Income Tax Refunds

Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Total

28 Cost of Materials Consumed 

Raw materials and Components

Opening Stock

Purchases

Less: Closing Stock

Stores and Spare parts consumed

Opening Stock

Purchases

Less: Closing Stock

Total

29 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-In-Progress

Opening Stock :-

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Total

Closing Stock :-

Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Total

Changes in inventories

30 Employee Benefits Expense

Salaries, wages and incentives

Contributions to provident and other funds

                                  0.43                                 7.96 

                              10.30                                 11.25 

                            232.54                              251.93 

                        3,342.92                           3,182.01 

                        1,156.08                           1,237.73 

                              12.61                                 26.51 

                      23,469.93                         18,511.31 

                        4,731.54                           4,671.67 

st31  March, 2023 st31  March, 2022

 (₹. in Lakhs) 

Year Ended  Year Ended  

                                6.68                                 13.54 

                              58.98                                 17.38 

                                     -                                     6.87 

                              84.62                                 37.79 

                              18.96                                       -   

                              35.47                                 30.35 

                                0.95                                 12.44 

                              67.29                                 80.98 

                      28,268.76                         23,263.96 

                      13,008.80                         10,428.49 

                            809.75                              727.55 

                      12,926.60                         10,328.30 

                            727.55                              627.36 

                            499.08                              415.73 

                            213.08                              323.97 

                            217.97                              175.11 

                            323.97                              282.25 

                            175.11                              133.48 

                            124.24                                 95.76 

                            336.69                              298.33 

                            108.53                              124.24 

                            352.40                              269.85 

                      13,279.00                         10,598.15 

                            431.05                              499.08 

                              68.03                               (83.35)

                        3,505.42                           3,242.87 

                            228.56                              230.63 

Staff welfare expenses

Total

31 Finance Cost

Interest expense

Other borrowing costs

Total                               12.67                                   7.80 

                            145.34                              132.38 

                        3,879.32                           3,605.88 

                                8.31                                   7.21 

                                4.36                                   0.59 
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Particulars

32 Other Expenses

Packing materials consumed

Power and Fuel

Rent

Rates and taxes

Insurance (including transit insurance)

Freight and Forwarding

Repairs & Maintenance:

Plant & Machinery

Buildings

        Others

Job work charges

Travelling & Conveyance

Sales Promotion Expenses

Provision for doubtful debts

Bad debts written off

Provision for doubtful debts - withdrawn

Postage,Printing & Stationery

Communication Expenses
Loss on sale/discarding of property, plant and equipment

Investment management and other expenses

Legal & Professional Expenses

Remuneration to Auditors:

Audit fees (including limited review fees)

Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses

Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) (Refer Note No. 54)

Charity and donations

Miscellaneous Expenses

Total

33 Contingent Liabilities:

(a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :

Disputed labour matter related to ex-workmen - amount unascertainable. 

(b)

34 Commitments:

(a)

(b)

35 (I) Secured Loans: 

(a)

(b)

(II) There is no default in repayment of principal and interest on secured loans during the year.

                            202.87                              195.00 

                              99.47                                 59.42 

                              70.00                                 47.15 

                              44.99                                 32.02 

                              65.13                                 66.67 

                            862.38                              687.62 

                              71.42                                 63.32 

                            528.31                              449.82 

                        1,338.68                           1,107.99 

                                      -   

                            484.35                              345.09 

                              10.50                                 10.50 

                            292.16                              414.43 

                              29.96                                 24.11 

                            (72.95)                                       -   

                        6,981.78                           5,845.48 

The Company’s litigations comprises of claims related to property disputes and proceedings pending with Tax and other Authorities. The Company has

reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions, wherever required. 

Estimated amountof contracts remaining to be executedon capital accountand not provided for (net of advance, unsecuredconsidered good), as at st31
March 2023 for ₹. 92.07 lakhs  (net of advance of ₹. 25.45 lakhs); Previous Year (₹. 156.56 lakhs (net of advance of ₹. 71.36 lakhs)).

InterestRate on Working capital loans as at
st

31 March 2023 is Repo Rate 6.25% plus Spread 3.95% ( Previous Year Repo Rate 4.00% plus Spread
3.95%). Fund based limit is utilised as at

st
31 March 2023 of ₹. 81.26 lakhs (Previous Year ₹. Nil ) and Non Fund based limit is utilised as at

st
31

March 2023 of ₹. 271.40 lakhs (Previous Year ₹. 275.30 lakhs) are secured by lien over investmentof ₹. 1987.29 lakhs ( Previous Year ₹. 2093.69
lakhs) - Refer note no.40.

                              32.63                                 24.57 

                              22.55                                 23.32 

                              70.00                                 60.00 

                            378.02                              339.78 

                            173.66                              113.89 

In respect of investmentsmade with private equity funds / debt funds,the Company is furthercommitted to invest as at st31 March 2023 for ₹.4,590.10

lakhs; Previous Year (₹. 6197.44 lakhs).

Vehicle loan (repayable within two years) is secured by way of hypothecationof vehicles purchased thereagainst and carry Interestin the range of 7.10%
(Previous Year 7.10%).

st31  March, 2023 st31  March, 2022

 (₹. in Lakhs) 
Year Ended  Year Ended  

                                0.73                                   0.73 

                        1,643.10                           1,337.37 

                            401.58                              273.06 

                            159.29                                 96.67 

                                     -                                   72.95 

                              72.95 

36

37 Earnings Per Share (₹. in lakhs except EPS and No. of equity shares)
Particulars

Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Account

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

38 Research and Development Expenditure

Debited to respective expenses heads in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Year Ended  Year Ended  

Basic and Diluted EPS (Face value of ₹. 5 each)                               18.60 

st
31  March, 2023

st
31  March, 2022

                        2,747.27                           2,160.16 

                   1,47,69,000                      1,47,69,000 

                            225.77                              185.37 

                                14.63 

The accounts of Trade receivable, Trade payable, Loans and Advances are subject to formal confirmations / reconciliation and adjustments, if any. The

management does not expect any material difference affecting the current year’s financial statements due to the same.
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39 Segment Reporting: 

Particulars

Segment Revenue

Composite Products

Investment

Total

Segment Expenses

Composite Products

Investment

Total

Segment Results

Profit/(Loss) before Interest, Tax and Exceptional Items from each segment

Composite Products

Investment

Total

Unallocated Expenses 

Interest Expenses

Other Income

Tax Expenses

Profit after taxation

Segment Assets

Composite Products

Investment

Unallocated Assets

Total

Segment Liabilities

Composite Products

Investment

Unallocated Liabilities

Total

Other Information:

Capital Expenditure - Composite Products

Depreciation & Amortisation

Identification of Segments:

Segment revenue and results

Segment assets and liabilities

Geographical Information

The Company has all the manufacturing facilities which are located in india only hance there is no grographical segment applicable.

                            678.28                              728.83 

                            872.93                              856.36 

Operating Segments: -  The chief operational decision maker (CODM) has identified 2  operating segments viz., Composite products and Investments.

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating resultsof its Business Segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource

allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the

financial statements.

                        1,193.26                           1,215.52 

                        7,735.14                           8,348.72 

The expenses and incomes which are not directly attributable to any business segment are shown as un-allocable expenditure (net of unallocated income).

Segment assets include all operating assets used by the operating segment and mainly consist of property plant and equipment, trade receivables, cash and
cash equivalents, Investmentsand inventories.Segment liabilities primarily include trade payables and other liabilities. Common assets and liabilities which

cannot be allocated to  any of the segments are shown as a part of un-allocable assets / liabilities.

                        1,478.62                           1,345.65 

                              12.67                                   7.80 

                            512.38                              311.27 

                   1,00,027.57                      1,00,282.69 

                      23,602.22                         19,476.87 

                        1,698.09                           2,145.16 

                        1,063.65                              290.61 

                        3,602.89                           3,496.48 

                        4,666.54                           3,787.09 

                      87,240.73                         87,330.72 

                        3,563.63                           3,565.71 

                        4,843.79                           4,988.04 

                            (84.62)                               (37.79)

                        2,747.49                           2,160.16 

                        9,223.21                           9,386.26 

                        1,128.65                           1,175.19 

Year Ended  Year Ended  

                      22,473.57                         18,301.68 

                      23,537.22                         18,592.29 

                        4,731.54                           4,671.67 

                      28,268.76                         23,263.96 

st31  March, 2023 st31  March, 2022
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40 Non-Current Investments: (Non Trade & Fully paid up)

Investments carried at fair value through OCI
Equity Instruments 

Equity Instruments 
Equity Shares
 - Quoted

 - Unquoted

100 4 -

 

-

       
 

-

       
 

ICICI Prudential Nifty ETF
ICICI Prudential Nifty Next 50 ETF
Motilal Oswal NASDAQ 100 ETF
Brookfield India Real Estate Trust REIT
Power Grid Investment Trust InvIT
Mindspace Business Park REIT
Shrem InvIT
National Highways Infra Trust InvIT

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Unquoted Convertible Preference Shares)

Multiple Private Equity Fund III
Kotak Pre IPO Opportunities Fund
India Business Excellence Fund IV
Sixth Sense India Opportunites III
ICICI Prudential Long Short Fund Series - II
Fireside Investments Venture Funds III

3,890.73
2,250.89

Total

GFM Retail Private Limited CCPS

Total Equity Shares

Total

206.00

2,29,000

          

266.12
1,59,600

          

499.77
3,15,600

          
424.10
606.45

10 29,69,104

         

1

100
100

1
100

1,75,000
          

47,00,000

        

1,985.28

31.38
10 48,300

 

Prabhukripa Overseas Ltd.

-

                    

Regen Powertech Private Ltd.
122.68

8,233.88

1,639.84

7,589.28

                 

2,31,053

           

23.34

                      

2,31,053

          

--

1,464.11

                 

ASK IEP Equity PMS

5,046.80
0.41

13,281.09

49,00,000

        

-

                          

1,59,600

           

3,15,600

           

1,75,000
           

2,00,000           

446.61

                    

386.99

                    

573.86
                    

696.60
                    

5,047.21

8,202.5019,300

              

7,443.26

                 

19,300

             

ZF Steering Gear (I) Ltd. 10 100

                   

0.43

                        

100

                  

239.05

                    

Total Index Funds/REIT/ InVIT

228.00                    2,00,000           
6,00,000

          
6,00,000

           

-

100

 Equity PMS  (Quoted) $ 

Ambit Coffee Can PMS
Total Equity PMS 

Rasoi Ltd. 200
10

3,639.15

                 

2,29,000

           

12,609.22

               

1,000
100

IIFL Special Opportunities Fund - Series 4 10

TVS Shriram Growth Fund - 3 1,000

Avendus Absolute Return Fund 
IIFL Special Opportunities Fund 10

India Business Excellence Fund - III 1,000

-

Avendus Future Leaders Fund I 1,00,000
-

-

Total Private Equity

469.02

3,868.94

42,900

45,30,295

11,012.69

               

2,235.81

882.21

98,000

 

J.L.Morison (India) Ltd. 10 2,72,800

           

5,019.52

                 

2,72,800

          

637.33

660.75

899.35

-

49,00,000

         

-

                          

55,000

 

49,13,991

-

1,000

 

25,000

 

1,423.15

5,019.95

                 

-

                    

64,949

18,68,504

        

-

 

49,00,000

        

-

                          

-

                   

49,00,000

         

2,175.04

                 

1,828.77

                 

 Index Funds/REIT/ InVIT (Quoted) 

-

                   

 Investment in Joint Venture (49% stake) (fully provided for and also refer note no. 50) 

47,00,000

         

1,861.54 -

 

49,13,991

-

                    

-

-

-

                    

-
-

-

                    

5,603.59

                 

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Unquoted Equity Shares)
10

Zephyr Peacock India Fund
India Business Excellence Fund - II 1,000

              

 Private Equity (Unquoted) * 

Total Investment in Joint Venture

KKR India Debt Opportunities Fund II 1,000

              

Multiples Private Equity Fund Scheme I

10

303.42

India Business Excellence Fund - I

TVS Shriram Growth Fund - 1B 1,000

              

-

                  

-

                  

Indiareit Apartment Strategy Fund

-

                  

45,30,295

Edelweiss Stressed & Troubled Assets Revival Fund - I 10,000

            

1,00,000

         

Multiples Private Equity Fund II LLP -

1,266.32

14,684.62

374.13

387.50

-

871

1,00,000

64,949

 

-

                          

-

                   

3,509.24

100

-

                    

-

                    

-

                    

-

                    

-

                    

57.10

-

                          

696.60

1,179.77

-

10,003.47

               

8,193.56

966.50

                    

50,000

             

-

                          

-

-
-

1,000

150 116.32 -

 

-

406.28

2,084.46

1,264.74

-

 

593.74

329.03

150.00

589.99

12,64,737

-

-

-

703.12

- -

 

-

                   

-

                   

-

-

                          

-

                   

-

                          

0.66

                        

14,679

             
1,667.59

-

102.88

                    

202.42

13.26

-

                                       

                                 

                              

                    

 

 
                   

 

                    

              

              

              

                  

                  

                  

         

                              

                                 

                                 

                                             

                    

                    

                    

                    

                                                       

                                                               

                          

                                       

                                 

                              

                              

                                 

                                 

                                 

 

                   

                   

                                       

                                             

                          

                                     

                              

                                       
                    

                                 

                                   

                                       

                         

                      

                      

                           

                      

                         

                           

                         

                           

                           

                           

                    

                    

                

 Particulars
                          

            

                    

                          
As on 31/03/2023 As on 31/03/2022

₹ Nos. ₹ Nos. ₹

Face Value
                                          

                            

            

                

      

                

                

            

 

 

 

 

Motilal Oswal S&P 500 Index Fund - Direct - Growth

* The Maturity of above funds range between 2 years to 8 years

Liquid Gold Series I Oct 2020 Series A

Total Pass Through Certificates -

                         

 Index Fund (Unquoted) 

10

Total Equity Mutual Funds

Total Equity Instruments 37,522.08

 Pass Through Certificates (Quoted) 

Secured-

10,00,000

       

267.64

-

                          

16,93,091

50

                   

 

16,93,091

40,317.64

501.48

267.64

501.48

257.55

257.55

-

                    

 

 

 

 Particulars
₹. 

-

-

₹. 
(Quoted)

Total

8.10% Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Preference Shares

Nos.

502.16

As on 31/03/2022      

₹. 

1,00,00,000 502.16-

Nos.

5

Face Value

 Preference Shares  
As on 31/03/2023       
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2

                       

1,141.90

                 

 Government Securities (Quoted) 

Total Government securities

1

                       

2

                       

               Secured- 

8.83% GOI 12 -Dec 2041 
5,00,00,000

9.20% GOI 30 -Sep 2030 

9.23% GOI 23 -Dec 2043 5,00,00,000

8.30% GOI 02 -July 2040                  

               

             

1,195.90

                 

                    

542.00

                    

1

                      

2

                      

1,171.20
2

                      

1,220.00

5,00,00,000 1

                       

573.001

                      

554.05

                    

553.85
5,00,00,000

3,433.85

               

3,518.05

 

 

 

7.33% Tata Capital Preference Shares (Tranche Y)

                          

                          1,000
Total

(Unquoted)

50,000

Total Preference Shares

1,192.75

1,192.75

696.55
496.2050,000

696.55

                    

67,000

             

     

496.20

                    

1,694.91

7.50% Tata Capital Preference Shares (Tranche V) 1,000 67,000

              

1,192.75

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                    

                    

                       

                  

Quoted

8.20% HUDCO Tax Free Bond-March 2027
8.56% HUDCO Tax Free Bond -Sep 2028
8.76% HUDCO Tax Free Bond -Jan 2034
8.66% IIFCL Tax Free Bonds -Jan 2034
7.40% IIFCL  Tax Free Bonds -Jan 2033
8.67% NHPC Tax Free Bonds -Nov 2033
8.76% NHB Tax Free Bond -Jan 2034
8.68% NHB Tax Free  Bonds -Mar 2029
8.93% NHB Tax Free  Bonds Series 2A -Mar 2029 
8.30% PFC- Tax Free Bonds -Feb 2027
7.37% NTPC Tax Free Bonds SR-3A - Oct 2035 #
7.25% IRFC Tax Free Bonds SR-104 - Dec 2035
9% Muthoot Finance Limited - Apr 2023
8.55% Cholamandalam Investment And Finance Company Ltd Nov 2026
8.65% Aditya Birla Finance Ltd Series C1 - Jun 2024
8.70% Aditya Birla Finance Ltd Series D1 - July 2029
8.70% LIC Housing Finance Ltd-Mar 2029
6.83% HDFC Ltd -Jan 2031 #
6.92% Bajaj Finance Limited Sr-270 Dec-2030
6.88% HDFC Ltd - June 2031 #
7.02% Bajaj Finance Limited - April 2031
6.88% HDFC Ltd - Sep 2031
7.05% HDFC Ltd - Dec 2031
7.10% Tata Capital Financial Services Limited  - Sep 2031
7.15% Bajaj Finance Ltd  - Dec 2031
7.05% Embassy Office Parks REIT SR V TR B NCD 18-OCT-2026 10,00,000 100

               

-

        

8.45% HDFC LTD. 2026 1,00,00,000 5 -
7.78% HDFC LTD 2027 5 -
7.82% Bajaj Finance Limited SR 286 TR 7 - 08/09/2032 10,00,000 50 -
8.15% L&T Finance Limited SR 2028 1,00,000 500 -
10% ATS InfraBuild Pvt. Ltd. Jun 2024 -

20,000

             

503.21                    

938.15

                    991.69

575.95

                    

15,100

             
10,000

             

50,000

             1,120.57

190.00

494.15

476.02

                    

1,882.60

                 

996.44

497.90

983.51

                    

933.20

                    

50

                    50

                    

977.08

50
                    

100

                  

17,925.31

499.00

489.49
494.9050

                    

100

                  

100

                  

503.15

979.57

17,321.18

505.76

30

468.82

                    

100

                   

200

                   

50,000

              

50,000

              

48,315

              

50

                     

100

                   
10,00,000

10,00,000

7,120

                
10,000

              

50,000

              

15,100

              

50                     

50
                     

100

50

                     

100

                   
50

                     

50
                     

6,384

                

1,000

-

                    
9,369

                

637.72

                    

Secured-

10,00,000

 Debentures and Bonds 

Total Secured

1,000

5,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

1,000

10,00,000

10,00,000
10,00,000

5,000

1,000

10,00,000
10,00,000

1,000

10,00,000

10,00,000
1,000
1,000
1,000

1

                       

11.47

                      

-

                    

617.71
81.89

48,315

             

6,384

               

78.18

                      609.85

                    

1,00,000

          

643.57

                    

7,120

               

12.27

50,000

             

661.56
606.50

97,310

             

1,349.61

-

                          

118.34

654.21

-

                          

10,000

              

583.15

                    

1,000

5,000

110.37

                    

641.80

                    

372.28

                    

50,000

             

9,369

               396.93

206.18

522.32
50

                   
505.09

1

                      

50                     

100

                  

300.00

100

                  

493.91

1,027.98

                 

1,082.90

50

                    

3,374.01

940.70

                    

471.46

                    

514.61
                    100

                   
938.77

 

500.90
                    

502.50

176.59

                    

1,00,00,000

-
-
-
-
-
-

10.75% Tata Power Co. Ltd. -Aug 2072

7.74% SBI Perpetual Bonds Sr -1

8.50% SBI Perpetual Bonds  Series II

6.65% Food Corporation of India - Oct 2030 (Government Guaranteed)

7.09% Food Corporation of India - Aug 2031 (Government Guaranteed)

7.95% Bank of Baroda Perpetual Bond

7.72% SBI Perpetual Bonds  2026

7.05% MTNL - 2030 (Government Guaranteed)

6.85% NABARD (GOI Fully Service) 2031 (Government Guaranteed)

8.22% NABARD 13/12/2028 - Series PMAYG PB-2 (Government Guaranteed)

8.18% NABARD  26/12/2028 - Series PMAYG-PB-3 (Government Guaranteed)

7.84% HDFC Bank Perpetual Bonds

               

-1,028.10

                 

1,029.00

4,778.64
-

                  

-

25

100
100

                   

-

                  

-
- -

-
-

496.5650
1,006.00

1,534.50
512.37
974.46

50
150

100

-

10,00,000

1,00,00,000

479.78

50 498.50
1,487.02150

50

50
100

10
5

477.86
934.23

100

10,00,000

10,00,000
5

                       

1,00,00,000

10,00,000
10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

10,00,000

Total Unsecured

10,00,000

Unsecured-

1,00,00,000

994.21

               

254.75

959.29 -

8,870.78

                 

                 

493.38

                    

10

-

                 

- -489.42

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                     

Unquoted

9.10% TATA International Limited Perpetual Bonds 100

22,703.95Total 27,196.68
1,004.73

10,00,000 1,004.73
Unsecured-

Total Unsecured

 

 

 

 Particulars
                          

            

                    

                          
As on 31/03/2023 As on 31/03/2022

₹ Nos. ₹ Nos. ₹

Face Value
                                          

                            

            

81

 (₹. in Lakhs) 



A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 2 - 2 3

     

stNotes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023

                                 

                              

                              

                                 

                                 

                                   

                              

                                       

                                       

                                 

                              

                              

                                 

                                 

                                 

                                       

                              

                                       

                                 

                                   

                                       

Contd….

       

       

       

                                    

                  

                  

                   

                                         

                     

                     

                       

                    

                   

                    

 

 

 

 

 

                    

 

 

 

                  

 

                   

                                      

 

                                                

 

 

 

             

             

               

             

                 

                                                        

                                                                                   

                     

                        

                   

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

Debentures (Quoted)

IIFL Finance Limited SR D14 BR NCD 07SP24 MLD 10,00,000

 

23

                 

-
IIFL Finance Limited SR D19 BR NCD 02SP24 MLD 10,00,000

 

24

                 

-

HDB Financial Services Limited NCD Series 189 10,00,000 50

                 

-

Total Debentures and Bonds

# Pledged with bank to avail fund and non fund based limit (Refer Note No. 35(I)(a))

 - Unquoted

BPEA Credit India Fund III Scheme F
Emerging India Credit Opportunities Fund I
Avendus Structured Credit Fund II

* The Maturity of above funds range between 2 years to 8 years

Total Non Current Investments

Aggregate amount of quoted investment and market value thereof

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 

28,214.30
             

513.54

                    

-

22,703.95

Edelweiss Infrastructure Yield Plus Fund 10,000 6,215

                

India Realty Excellence Fund IV 100 -

                    

India Housing Fund 22,63,994

         

UTI Structured Debt Opportunities Fund I 100 1,69,273

           

-

                    

100

 Real Estate and Debt Fund 

1,000 -

                    

Annuities in Senior Secured Estate Transcations Asset - 1 100 -

                    

91,86,729

         

EISAF II Onshore Fund 10,000 7,880

                

Avendus Structured Credit Fund - I 5,00,000 -

                    

10,000
Edelweiss Credit Opportunities Fund

1,120

                

ICICI Prudential PMS India Real Estate Securities Portfolio-Series XII - -

                    

IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series -3 10 49,83,975

         

Total Debentures

Secured-
259.21

                    

Total

Total Real Estate and Debt Fund

114.37

                    

49,83,975

       

49,250

            

97.73

                      

-

                  
16.88

                      

88.84

5,375

              

7,20,000

         

12,305

            

808.58

                    

-

                          

56,014

            

705

                 
91,86,729

       

168.54

                    

22,63,994

       

1,017.62

                 

-

                          

-

                          

244.87

                    

11,755

            

88.75

55.89

122.45

52.70

222.29

                    Investcorp Score Fund (Formerly known as IDFC Score Fund)
Annuities in Senior Secured Estate Transcations 2 Asset - 2
Edelweiss Real Estate Opportunities Fund 175.80

119.66

110.36

                    

Peninsula Brookfield  India Real Estate Fund 1,00,000

IIFL Real Estate Fund (Domestic) Series -2 
139.92

-

                    
10

India Realty Excellance Fund II LLP - -

                    

331.17376.53

                    

112.39

                    

1,000

-

                  

3,54,510

         

251.59

                    

335.32

-

                    

1,00,000 1,298 1,297.50 1,298 1,297.50

1,768

              

280.11

402.19
715.76

100 5,82,500

           

578.52

                    

3,65,000

         

367.96

228.75

746.27
1,182.22

                 

18

                   

144.41

                    

1,477.03

4,05,841

         

10

1,071.40

                 
$ The Company invests through Portfolio Managers who provide Portfolio Management Services which are in the nature of investment administrative management services and include the 
responsibility to manage, invest and operate the fund as per the agreement(s) entered with them.

27,966.89

49,305.99 44,357.14

7,226.07

6,909.90 7,226.07

77,272.88

6,909.90

31,604.96

1,00,000 357 200 200.00356.59

75,962.10
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Face Value

                    
                      

                            

            

-
-

-

82

 (₹. in Lakhs) 



A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 2 - 2 3

                                 

                              

                              

                                 

                                 

                                   

                              

                                       

                                        

                                 

                              

                               

                                  

                                  

                                  

                                       

                              

                                       

                                 

                                   

                                       

                           

                         

                       

        

                    

                    

                                                

                    

        

        

        

                                        

                           

                   

                  

                                        

                                                      

                               

 

                                    

 

                   

                                    

                                    

                                  

                    

                                    

                                                           

                                  

                                  

                                  

                                  

 

                                  

                               

                                  

                                  

                                  

                                  

                                  

                                  

 

                               

                           

                               

                             

                           

                                                    

                           

Total Bonds

Shashwati Realty Pvt. Ltd. 30           
Zuari Global Investment

Total
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss

Debentures and Bonds

Debentures (Quoted)

Motilal Oswal Finvest SR M1 BR 14MAR24 MLD 10,00,000

 

50

                 

-

        

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited SR IFGD IV BR 14FEB2024 MLD 1,00,000

   

300

               

-

        

Total Debentures and Bonds

 - Unquoted

Mutual Funds

Kotak Overnight Fund Direct Growth -

               

Total

Total Mutual Funds

Total Current Investments
Aggrate amount of quoted investment and market value thereof

Aggrate amount of unquoted investments

* Liquid mutual fund has been shown as cash and cash euivalents in cash flow statement.

                    

Secured-

10,00,000

1,150.05

                 
1,154.47

Total 

199.99 1,323.48

Debentures (Unquoted)
Secured-

30                     150.05                    
10,00,000 100                   100                   1,000.00                 1,004.42

Total 45.73

                      

-

 Real Estate and Debt Fund 

Annuities in Senior Secured Estate Transcations Asset - 1 100 58,368

              

45.73

                      

-

                   

-

Total Real Estate Fund 45.73

                     

-

 Liquid Mutual Funds (Unquoted) *
AXIS Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth 1,000 47,242.363

       

560.09

                    

61,641.859

      

692.77

1,678.83

               

1,323.49

1,755.86

               

2,309.08

1,000 -

                          

40,735.735

      

461.85
560.09

                    

1,154.62

560.09

                    

1,154.62

3,434.69

               

3,632.57

                  

2,326.71

               

2,477.95

976.67

                  

-

547.15

                    

429.52

                    

                                             

                             

 

                               

                                        

 

                                        

41 Current Investments:
Investments carried at fair value through OCI

 Particulars

Total

Total Preference Shares 

Debentures and Bonds
 Particulars

Bonds (Quoted)

9% Muthoot Finance Limited - Apr 2023
10% ATS Infra Build Pvt. Ltd. Jun 2022

9.90% ING Vysya Bank Ltd Bond  -Dec 2022
8.85% HDFC Bank Limited BD Perpetual Bonds - Series 1

300.00

Secured-

10,00,000

       

-

                    

30

                    

1,000 -20,000

              

199.99

                    

-

                   

Face Value
Nos. ₹

As on 31/03/2023       As on 31/03/2022       

 Preference Shares  
Face Value As on 31/03/2023       

502.16

Unsecured-
10,00,000 50

                    

521.74

Total

-

                          

-

                    

199.99

                    

300.00

                    
-

                    

-

                          

50

                    

501.74

-

                          

1,023.48

10,00,000

Total

-502.16

-

                          

₹ Nos. ₹

(Quoted)
8.10% Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited Preference Shares

As on 31/03/2022      
₹ Nos. ₹ Nos. ₹

5 1,00,00,000 502.16 - -

150.05
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42 Employee Benefits

(a)      Defined contribution plan

(b)      Defined benefit plan

(₹. In Lakhs)

Present  Value

 of Obligation

Fair Value

of plan assets

Net amount

As at March 31, 2021                789.34 495.49
               

293.85
               

Current service cost                  46.43 -
                    

46.43
                 

Interest expense/(income)                  54.07 33.94
                 

20.13
                 

Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss                100.50                  33.94                  66.56 

Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in internet 

expense/(income)                  (8.48) -                    (8.48)                 

Net actuarial (gain)/loss -                    

Change in experience                120.08 -                    120.08               
Change in demographic assumptions                  (0.22) -                    (0.22)                 
Change in financial assumptions                 (16.58) -                    (16.58)                
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income                  94.80                       -                    94.80 

Employer Contribution                       -   227.07               (227.07)              
Benefits payment                 (13.00) (13.00)

                
-

                    
As at March 31, 2022                971.64                743.50                228.14 

As at March 31, 2022                971.64 743.50
               

228.14
               

Current service cost                  49.76 -
                    

49.76
                 Interest expense/(income)                  69.47 53.16

                 
16.31

                                119.23                  53.16                  66.07 

Total amount recognised in statement of profit and loss                119.23                  53.16                  66.07 

Remeasurements

Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in internet 

expense/(income)                   5.12 -

                    

5.12

                  Net actuarial (gain)/loss 

Change in experience                  18.49 -

                    

18.49

                 
Change in demographic assumptions                       -   -

                    

-

                    
Change in financial assumptions                  38.16 -

                    

38.16

                 
Total amount recognised to comprehensive income                  61.77                       -                    61.77 

The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the

rate of 12 % of basic salary and other allowances as per regulations. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount

contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expenses recognised during the period

towards defined contribution plan is ₹.157.50 lakhs (March 31, 2022 ₹. 140.63 lakhs).

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity for employees who are in

continuous services for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on termination/retirement

is employees last drawn salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of

service. The gratuity is a funded plan and the Company make contributions to recognised funds in India. 

Particulars
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Employer contribution                       -   106.88               (106.88)              

Benefits payment               (100.93) (60.22)                (40.71)                

As at March 31, 2023             1,051.71                843.32                208.39 

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

As at 

March 31, 2023

As at 

March 31, 2022

Present value of funded obligations            (1,051.71) (971.64)              
Fair value of plan assets                843.32 743.50               
Deficit of funded plan *               (208.39)               (228.14)

* Excluding provision made in respect of employees who are out of coverage under the policy ₹. 46.13 lakhs ( Previous

year ₹ 55.89 lakhs)

Significant estimates: actuarial assumptions and sensitivity 

As at 

March 31, 2023

As at 

March 31, 2022

Financial assumption:

Discount rate 7.47% 7.15%

Salary escalation rate 7.00% 6.00%

Demographic assumption:

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) 

Urban

IALM (2012-14) 

Urban

Attrition rate 2% 2%

Retirement age 58 & 60 Years 58 & 60 Years

Sensitivity analysis (₹ in Laks)

The sensitivity of the overall plan liabilities to changes in the 

weighted key assumptions are:

As at 

March 31, 2023

As at 

March 31, 2022

Discount rate

a) Discount rate - 100 basis points 60.60                 57.49                 
b) Discount rate + 100 basis points (54.35)                (51.61)                

Salary escalation rate

a) Rate - 100 basis points                 (55.06) (52.61)                
a) Rate + 100 basis points                  60.29 57.58                 

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period and may not be representativeof the actual change. It is based

on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the

assumption, the same method used to calculate the liability recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The

methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous

period.
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The major categories of plan asset are as follows:
As at 

March 31, 2023
As at 

March 31, 2022

Equities 0% 0%

Bonds 0% 0%

Gilts 0% 0%

Pooled assets with an insurance company 100% 100%

Other 0% 0%

100% 100%

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year end March 31, 2023 as follows:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Year 1 161.80
               

145.42
               

Year 2 60.93
                 

38.62
                 

Year 3                119.85 108.67               

Year 4                133.13 108.48               

Year 5                140.01 135.59               

Years 6-10                510.38 473.57               

Years 11 and above                624.10 575.77

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 7 years (Previous Year 2022: 7 years).

Risk exposure:

The Code on Social Security :
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment

benefits has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not

been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code and recognise the same when the Code becomes 

Interest risk:- A decrease in the bond interest will increase in plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an

increase in the return on the plan's debt investments.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to best estimate of the

mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan

participants will increase the plan liability.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan

participants.As such an increase in salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Through its defined benefit plans, Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed

below:

Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using discount rate determined by

reference to market yields at the end of reporting period on government bond yields.
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43 Financial instruments

a. Financial assets
(₹. In Lakhs)

FVOCI (Equity 

instruments)

FVOCI (Other 

instruments)

FVTPL Instruments 

carried at 

amortized cost

Total carrying 

value

Total fair value

stAs at 31  March, 2022

Investments 40,317.63

            

30,896.38

            

8,380.66

                 

-

                        

79,594.67

         

79,594.67

Trade receivables -

                        

-

                        

-

                           

3,749.86

              

3,749.86

            

3,749.86

Cash and cash equivalents -

                        

-

                        

-

                           

245.83

                 

245.83

               

245.83

Other Bank balances -

                        

-

                        

-

                           

35.41

                   

35.41

                 

35.41

Loans -

                        

-

                        

-

                           

2,228.24

              

2,228.24

            

2,228.24

Other financial assets -

                        
-

                        
-

                           
1,113.38

              
1,113.38

            
1,113.38

Total 40,317.63
            

30,896.38 8,380.66 7,372.72 86,967.39 86,967.39

stAs at 31  March, 2023

Investments 37,522.08
            

33,675.48
            

9,510.00
                 

-
                        

80,707.56
         

80,707.56

Trade receivables -

                        
-

                        
-

                           
3,965.80

              
3,965.80

            
3,965.80

Cash and cash equivalents -

                        

-

                        

-

                           

68.93

                   

68.93

                 

68.93

Other Bank balances -

                        

- - 83.92 83.92 83.92

Loans -

                       

- - 900.00 900.00 900.00

Other financial assets -

                        

-

                        

-

                           

1,278.47

              

1,278.47

            

1,278.47

Total 37,522.08

            

33,675.48

            

9,510.00

                 

6,297.12

              

87,004.68

         

87,004.68

b.Financial liabilities (₹. In Lakhs)

Fair value 

through profit & 

loss

At amortized 

cost

Total carrying 

amount

Total fair value

stAs at 31  March, 2022

Borrowings -

                        

30.34

                    

30.34

                      

30.34

                  

Trade payables - 4,243.88 4,243.88 4,243.88

             

Other financial liabilities -

                       

65.44 65.44 65.44

                  

Total -

                        

4,339.66

              

4,339.66

                 

4,339.66

             

stAs at 31  March, 2023

Borrowings -

                        

100.73

                 

100.73

                    

100.73

                

Trade payables -

                        

3,928.53

              

3,928.53

                 

3,928.53

             

Other financial liabilities -

                        

92.93

                    

92.93

                      

92.93

                  

Total

                        

4,122.19

              

4,122.19

                 

4,122.19

             

The details of significant accounting policies, including criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
 expenditure are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 40 and 41.

Financial assets and liabilities

The accounting classification  of each category  of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts are set out as below:

Instruments carried at fair value
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c. Fair value hierarchy

The categories used are as follows:

• Level 1: quoted prices for identical instruments in active market.

• Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

• Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The below table summarises the categories of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2023, and March 31, 2022 
measured at fair value: 

(₹. In Lakhs)
st

As at 31  March, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets at fair value

Equities

Equity instruments 17,131.49

            

23,186.14

            

-

                        

40,317.63

               

Debt

Debentures and bonds 23,727.49

           

 

1,004.42

              

450.05

                 

25,181.95

               

Pass through certificates (PTC) 501.48

                

 

501.48

 

Preference shares -

                       

 

-

                        

1,694.90

              

1,694.90

                 

Government bonds 3,518.05

             

 

-

                        

-

                        

3,518.05

                 

Real estate and debt funds 7,226.04

             

 

-

                        

-

                        

7,226.04

                 

Mutual Fund 1,154.62

             

 

-

                        

-

                        

1,154.62

                 

53,259.17

           

 

24,190.55

            

2,144.95

              

79,594.67

               

stAs at 31  March, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets at fair value

Equities

Equity instruments 18,920.12

           

 
18,601.96

            
-

                        
37,522.08

 

Debt

Preference shares 1,694.91              1,694.91                 
Government Bonds 3,433.85

             

 
3,433.85

                 Debentures and bonds 28,086.23

           

 
2,004.73

              
450.05

                 
30,541.01

               Real estate and debt funds -

                       

 

6,955.63

              

6,955.63

 
Mutual fund 560.09

                

 

-

                        

560.09

                   
51,000.28

           

 

27,562.32

            

2,144.96

              

80,707.56

               Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:-

Financial assets Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Trade receivables 3,965.80

             

 

3,965.80

              

3,749.86

              

3,749.86

                 

Cash and cash equivalents 68.93

                   

 

68.93

                   

245.83

                 

245.83

                    

Other Bank balances 83.92

                   

 

83.92

                   

35.41

                    

35.41

                      

Loans 900.00

                

900.00 2,228.24 2,228.24

Other financial assets 1,278.47

             

1,278.47 1,113.38 1,113.38

6,297.12

             

6,297.12 7,372.72 7,372.72

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 100.73

                

100.73 30.34 30.34

Trade payables 3,928.53 3,928.53 4,243.88 4,243.88

Other financial liabilities 92.93 92.93 65.44 65.44

4,122.19 4,122.19 4,339.66 4,339.66

The Company uses the following hirerarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

The Management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments in term deposits, loans, other financial
assets (except derivative financial instruments),trade payables, and other financial liabilities (except derivative financial instruments) is considered
to be equal to the carrying amountof these items due to their short-term nature.

There were no significant changes in classification and no significant movements between the fair value hierarchy classifications of financial 
assets and financial liabilities during the period.
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44 Income Tax

A.  Components of Income tax Expense  (₹. in lakhs) 
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

st31  March, 2023 st31  March, 2022

(a) Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

i) Current tax

Current year                   515.99                 308.00 

  Total current tax 515.99

                  

308.00

               

ii) Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary difference                   (24.16)                    3.27 

   Total deferred income tax expense/(credit) (24.16)

                  

3.27

                  

Total i) + ii) 491.83

                  

311.27

               

(b) Tax on Other Comprehensive Income

i) Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Tax on reliazed gain of equity instruments                   264.14                 380.56 

Tax on remeasurements of net defined benefit plans                   (10.79)                  (16.56)

Tax on equity instrument through other comprehensive income                  (243.98)              1,704.88 

Deferred Tax liability of earlier periods on equity instrument through other comprehensive income*                         -               (3,093.02)

9.37

                     

(1,024.14)

           

ii) Income tax on items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Tax on debt instrument through other comprehensive income                  (233.52) (364.26)

              

Deferred Tax liability of earlier periods debt instrument through other comprehensive income*                         -   (466.98)

              

(233.52)

                 

(831.24)

              

Total i) + ii) (224.15)

                 

(1,855.38)

           

B. Reconciliation of tax espenses and the accounting profit for the year  (₹ in lakhs) 

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
st

31  March, 2023
st

31  March, 2022

       A reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate applicable to the Company and the effective income tax rate of the Company is as follows :

Profit before tax 3,259.65                2,471.43             
Enacted income tax rate in India 29.12% 29.12%

Expected income tax expense during the year at statutory rate 949.21

                  
719.68

               Differences due to:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 17.91

                   

28.12

                 
Exempt Income (96.14)

                  

(155.34)

              

Utilization of Minimum alternate tax credit not recognised earlier (379.68)

                 

(287.87)

              

Tax Rate Difference etc. -

                       

6.68

                  

Effective tax  expenses 491.29

                  

311.27

               

C. The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities  (₹ in lakhs) 

Movement during the year ended March 31, 2022 stAs at 31  March, 

2021

Credit/(charge) in 

statement of Profit 

and Loss

Credit/(charge) in 

Other 

Comprehensive 

Income*

stAs at 31  March, 

2022

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

On expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid 38.71

                    

(51.60)

                     

-

                       

(12.89)

                

On depreciation (1,280.21)

              

48.47

                      

-

                       

(1,231.74)

           

On fair valuation of financial assets (4,245.23)

              

-

                         

2,219.38

               

(2,025.85)

           

(5,486.73)

              

(3.13)

                       

2,219.38

               

(3,270.48)

           

Movement during the year ended March 31, 2023
stAs at 31  March, 

2022

Credit/(charge) in 

statement of Profit 

and Loss

Credit/(charge) in 

Other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

stAs at 31  March, 

2023

On expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid (12.89)

                   

46.96

                      

-

                       

34.07

                 

On depreciation (1,231.74)

              

(20.20)

                     

-

                       

(1,251.94)

           

On fair valuation of financial assets (2,025.85)

              

-

                         

447.89

                  

(1,577.96)

           

Total (3,270.48)

              

26.76

                      

447.89

                  

(2,795.83)

           

Note:

As a matter of produnce minimum alternate tax credit available for ₹ 875.92 lakhs (previous year ₹ 860.32 lakhs)  is not recognised in books of account.
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(a)      Liquidity risk

The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or  another financial 
asset. Liquidity risk management implies maintain sufficient cash including availability of  funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to 
meet the obligations as and when due.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring as far as possible that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its short tem and long term liabilities as and 
when due. Anticipated future cash flows,undrawan committed credit facilities are expected to be sufficient to meet the liquidity requirements of the Company.

(i) Financing arrangements

The Company has access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities as at the end of the reporting period:
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45 Risk Management

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other 
liabilities

Rolling cash flow 
forecasts

Availability of 
committed credit lines 
and borrowing 
facilities; working 
capital management

Credit risk Cash and cash 
equivalents, trade  
receivables, 
Investments, loans and 
other financial assets 
measured at fair 
/amortised cost.

Ageing analysis/ 
Credit ratings / Assets 
Coverage

Diversification in 
verious class of 
assets, credit limits

Market Risk - Foreign exchange Financial assets and 
liabilities denominated in 
INR

Cash flow forecasting 
Sensitivity analysis

Hedging
Forex planning

Market Risk - Interest rate Long-term borrowings at 
variable rates

Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps

Market Risk - Price risk Investments in Equitites, 
Bonds, debentures, 
funds

Sensitivity analysis; 
market fluctuations; 
credit rating

Continous monitoring, 
Diversificaton
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Financial risk management objective and policies                                                            .
The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's financial risk management policy 
is set by the Managing Board. The risk management policies aims to mitigate the following risk  arising from the financial instruments: (a) Market risk; (b) Liquidity 
risk and (c) Credit risk.                                                                                         .

Financial risk factors                                                                                   .
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, deposits from dealers and  trade and other payables. The  purpose of these financial liabilities is 
to finance the Company's operations and to provide to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include investments, loans,  trade and 
other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.The Company is exposed to the following  risk  arising from the financial 
instruments: (a) Market risk; (b) Liquidity risk and (c) Credit risk (d) COVID 19.

(b) Market risk             
 Market  risk  is  the  risk  that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial  instrument  will fluctuate  because of changes in market prices. Market  risk  
 comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,  currency risk and price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected 
 by market risk includes investment, deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. The value of a financial  instrument  may  change as a result of 
 changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. The 
 Company's treasury team manages the Market risk, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the entire process of market risk 
 management.             
              
 (i)  Foreign currency risk             
      Foreign currency risk can only arise on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency in which they are  
  measured.  The  Company's  functional and  presentation  currency  is  INR. The  Company does have transactions in currency other than functional 
  currency i.e. in US Dollar (USD) for purchase of raw material from overseas supplier. However, those are not very significant considering the nature 
  and size of the operations of the Company .             

      (  In Lakhs)       ₹.
st st Particulars     As at 31  March 2023                      As at 31 March 2022           

Secured working capital credit facility from Banks    1,520.00   600.00            
                 
 (ii) The following is the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities:      In Lakhs)(₹. 
                   
 Carrying  Total  Payable on   Less than 1   1-12 months  more than 12 
 amount  demand month  months

stAs at 31  March, 2022                    
Non-derivative liabilities                    
Borrowings 30.34  30.34   -    1.00  9.86                 19.48 
Trade payables 4,243.88  4,243.88     -                  2,891.74        1,352.14                      -   
Other financial liabilities 65.44  65.44  23.87  79.71         -                        -   
                     

stAs at 31  March, 2023                    
Non-derivative liabilities                    
Borrowings 100.73  100.73  -   6.87  82.34               11.52 
Trade payables 3,928.53  3,928.53   -    2,831.28  1,097.25                      -   
Other financial liabilities 92.93  92.93  33.92   59.01                           -                      -   



Sensitivity             
The table below summarises the impact of Increase/decrease of the BSE index on the Company's equity and Gain/Loss for the period. The analysis is based on the 
assumption  that the index has increased by 5% or decrease by 5 % with ll other variables held constant and that all the Company's equity instruments moved in line with 
the index.             

Investments in Equity Instruments and Equity mutual funds (including investment through Private Equity funds)             
The Company's quoted equity instruments are subject to the market  price risk arising  from the  fluctuation in the market  price  of those instruments. This risk arises 
from  instruments  which  are  classified  as Fair  value  through  P&L or Fair  value through OCI. The Company's investment in equity instruments mainly consists of 
Investments in certain of its group companies wherein the price fluctuations, based on the historical trends, are not very significant.             

(iii) Price Risk             
             
The  Company’s  exposure  to  price risk  arises from  investments held by the Company and classified in the balance sheet either at fair value through OCI or at fair 
value  through  profit and loss. To manage its  price risk arising  from its investments , the Company  diversifies  its portfolio. Diversification of the  portfolio is done in 
accordance with the limits set by the Company in accordance with the guidelines provided by the Board of directors of the Company.             

Exposure to Interest rate risk - Financial assets - Investments in Government Bonds, Bonds, Debentures, Debt funds and Preference Shares             
Market price risk for  government bonds, debentures, Preference shares and other bonds is  movement in the interest rate and impact thereof on the yield. The Company's 
major part of investments is in Bonds/Debentures, which exposes Company to a price risk and consequently impact on the profitability and value of instruments             

Sensitivity
The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease in the interest rate over the value of bonds/debentures. The analysis is based on the assumption  that 
the Interest rate  has increased by 100 bps or decrease by 100bps with all other variables held constant.

(ii) Interest rate risk             
 Interest  rate  risk  is  the risk  that  the fair  value  of  future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 

Company's Long term  borrowings  have  fixed  rate  of  interest  and  carried  at  amortized  costs  and short  term borrowings have variable rate of interest. The 
Company also has significant investments in Bonds i.e. Government  securities; Debentures; Preference shares and Debt funds.  These investments are subject 
to the Market risk - Interest rate risk.             
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Foreign currency Exposure (₹ In lakhs)

Particulars Currency stAs at 31  March 2023 stAs at 31  March 2022

Trade payable USD 1.02

                            

0.12

                          

Trade receivables USD 0.58

                            

2.43

                          

Trade receivables EURO 0.02

                            

-

                            

Net Exposure - [Receivable/(Payable)] (0.42)

                           

2.31

                          

The company's exposure to the foreign currency risk is not significant considering the nature and size of the operations.

Exposure to Interest rate risk - Financial liabilities
(₹ In Lakhs)

Particulars stAs at 31  March 2023 stAs at 31  March 2022

Total borrowings 100.73
                        

30.34
                          % of borrowings out of above bearing variable rate 

of interest and short term in nature 100.00% 100.00%

(₹ In Lakhs)

Impact on profit before tax  For the year ended 
st31  March 2023 

 For the year ended 
st31  March 2022 

Increase of 100 bps -Gain/(loss) 1,698.74 1,435.00

Decrease of 100 bps-Gain/(loss) (1,698.74)

                     

(1,435.00)

                    

Hence, the Company is not significantly exposed to the interest rate risk  as working capital facility are, as per contractual terms, primarily of short term in nature.

Exposure
(₹ In Lakhs)

Nature of Investments
 Amount  %   Amount  %  

Equity instruments 37,522.08

                  

46.49% 40,317.63

              

50.65%
Pass through certificates (PTC) -

                            

0.00% 501.48

                  

0.63%
Preference Shares 1,694.91

                    

2.10% 1,694.90

               

2.13%
Government Bonds 3,433.85

                    
4.25% 3,518.05

               
4.42%

Debentures and bonds 30,541.01
                  

37.84% 25,181.95
              

31.64%
Real estate and debt funds 6,955.63                    8.62% 7,226.04                9.08%
Mutual fund 560.09                      0.69% 1,154.62

               1.45%
Total 80,707.56 100.00% 79,594.67

 
100.00%

(₹ In Lakhs)

Impact on total comprehensive income  For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

 For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

BSE Sensex - Increase 5% -Gain/(loss) 1,876.10

                      

1,380.38

                      

BSE Sensex - Decrease 5% -Gain/(loss) (1,876.10)

                     

(1,380.38)

                     

st As at 31  March 2023 st As at 31  March 2022 

stNotes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023
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(c) Credit risk               
 Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assess 
 financial reliability of counter party, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts 
 receivable. The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risks on an 
 on-going basis throughout each reporting period.              
 
 To assess whether there is a significant change increase in credit risk the Company compares the risks of default occurring on the assets as at the reporting date with 
 the risk of default as at the date of  initial recognition. It considers the reasonable and supportive forward looking information such as:               
                
 (i)  Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business.               
 (ii)  Actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the counterparty.               
 (iii)  Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet its obligations               
 (iv)  Significant increase in credit risk on other financial instruments of same counterparty               
  
 (i)  Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach ( Refer Note 9 for ageing of Trade Receivable)               
                
 Commodity Risk               
 The Company is exposed to the risk of price fluctuation of raw materials proactively managed through forward booking, inventory management and proactive vendor  
 development practices.               

A N N U A L R E P O R T 2 0 2 2 - 2 3

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio being a ratio of net debt as a percentage of total capital.

(₹. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

Total equity 92,292.45              91,934.02              
Net Debt 31.80

                     
(215.49)

                 
Total Capital (Borrowings and Equity) 92,324.25

              

91,718.53

              Gearing Ratio 0.03% -0.23%

(i) Net debt represents total borrowings (non-current & current) as reduced by cash and cash equivalents. 

(ii) Equity comprises of  all components incuding other comprehensive income.

(b) Dividend (₹. In Lakhs)

st
As at 31  March 

2023

st
As at 31  March 

2022

Equity Shares

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2022 of ₹ 2.00 per share 

(March 31, 2021 - ₹ 2.00) per fully paid share

                   295.38                   295.38 

In addition to the above dividend, since year end the directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of ₹ 2.00 fully paid equity share 
st(31  March, 2023 - ₹ 2.00). This proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

stNotes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023

46 Capital Risk Management

(a) The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to :

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which includes capital and other

strategic investments. The Company’s intention is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain

investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business.

Ÿ
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(i)

(ii)

 

(iii)
Non 

(iv)

(v)

J.
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ii) The related parties are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. 

(vii) Salary and other employee benefits to Whole Time Directors and KMP

Mr. Raghu Mody

Mr. P.K. Choudhary

Mr. Sunil Jindal

Mr. Vikram Soni

Mr. Pranabh Kapoor

(viii) Salary and other employee benefits to relatives of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Mrs. Shashi Mody

                              28.02                                 26.22 

                              10.92                                 13.00 

                              29.33                                 29.33 

                            100.18                                 90.42 

                            137.22                              156.29 

                                5.57                                       -   

(ix) Directors sitting fees and commission to independent  and non executive directors 

Mr. Raghu Mody

Mr. Ashok B Vaidya

Mr. K. S. Brar

Mr. Deepak Sethi

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia

Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agarwal

(x) Other Transactions

Rasoi Express Pvt. Ltd. (Purchase of Air Tickets)*

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  (Purchase of Raw Material)*

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  (Sale of Raw Material)*

Mr. Varunn Mody (Salary)

* Including GST

(C) Balances outstanding with related parties referred in (A) above, in ordinary course of business:
Particulars

(i) Receivable:

 - Inter Corporate Deposits:

   Pallawi Resources Pvt. Ltd.(secured)

 - Others Receivable:

   Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd. (Trade Receivable)

   Pallawi Resources Pvt. Ltd.(Interest Receivable)

   Mr. Varunn Mody (Rent Deposit Receivable)

(ii) Payable:

  - Commission to independent directors 

Mr. Ashok B Vaidya

Mr. K. S. Brar

Mr. Deepak Sethi

Mr. Lalit Kumar Bararia

Mrs. Preeti Vimal Agarwal

(iii) Investment in: (at cost)

J.L. Morison (India) Ltd.

Rasoi Limited

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  (Refer Note i) below)

Note:

i) No amount pertaining to related parties has been written off / provided for as doubtful debts except diminution in value of

investment in Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd. of ₹ 980 lakhs (Previous year ₹ 980 lakhs). Also no amount has been written

off/back.

                                1.90 

                                1.90 

                                1.90 

                                  1.90 

                                  1.90 

                                  1.90 

 (₹ In Lakhs) 

                                6.60                                   6.60 

As at As at

                                47.59                                 9.48 

                                  3.10 

                                  2.80 

                                3.50 

                              90.29                                 84.29 

                              45.67                                 20.85 

                              44.20                                 93.94 

Compo Advics (India) Pvt. Ltd.  (Reimbursement of Sales Promotion

 Expenses - Coupons)

                            515.49                              515.49 

                        1,876.23 

                                3.50                                   3.40 

                                  3.40 

                                2.90 

                                2.70 

                                3.20 

                                  2.50 

                          1,876.23 

                            980.00                              980.00 

                                1.90 

                                1.90 

                                  1.90 

                                  1.90 

st
31  March, 2023

st
31  March, 2022

                              31.64                                 43.64 

                                5.27                                 40.99 

                            225.00                           1,750.00 

                                0.10                                       -   

17.89

                             

-

                                  

stNotes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023
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Particulars

 (₹. In Lakhs) 

Year Ended  Year Ended  
st

31  March, 2023
st

31  March, 2022
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48

Amount Outstanding end of the year

Employees (as per general rules of the Company)
Maximum amount Outstanding During the Year

Employees (as per general rules of the Company)

(b) Details of Short Term Inter Corporate Deposits: #

Kashipur Holdings Ltd.

India Glycols Limited

Total

(c) Details of Long Term Inter Corporate Deposits: #

Pallawi Resources Pvt. Ltd. *

* Percentage to the total loans and advances in the nature of loans given to Pallawi Resources Pvt. Ltd. is 25% (Previous Year 78.65%).  

 # Inter corporate deposits (ICD) given for general corporate purpose of the borrowing company on interest in the range of 10% to 13% 

(Previous Year 10% to 13%). 

                            675.00                              475.00 

                            225.00                           1,750.00 

                            475.00                              475.00 

Loans where there is no interest or at an interest rate below that specified in the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 Nil                                   2.37 

                            200.00                                       -   

                                5.50                                   7.91 

(a) Loans and Advances in nature of loans.

Particulars As at As at

 (₹. In Lakhs) 

st31  March, 2023 st31  March, 2022
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* Including current maturity of long term borrowing.

51 Accounting Ratios
Sr. No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

NA

NA

% 

Variance

5.04%

0.00%

-31.06%

-94.02%

19.05%

30.47%

24.81%

58.09%

FY 2021-22

2.38

Remarks

Due to utilization of borrowing

Due to changes in fair valuation

NA

Due to increase in turnover

NA

Due to Refund of Loans

FY 2022-23

2.50

0.00

176.10

0.71%

17.37

6.08

3.27

9.72%

4.3

Average trade 
payables

Working Capital

0.00

255.43

11.87%

14.59

4.66

2.62

9.29%

2.72

Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and financial assets arising from financing activities.

(₹. In Lakhs)

Particulars

st
As at 31  

March 2021

Cash Flow Non-

cash

changes

st
As at 31  

March 2022

Cash Flow Non-

cash

chang

st
As at 31  

March 2023

-

     

11.52

Short Term Borowing 30.28

                  

(19.42)

                               

-

                

10.86

                   

78.36

               

-

     

89.22

Long Term Borowing* 11.80

                  

15.43

                                 

(7.76)

             

19.47

                   

(7.95)

                

NA

NA

Net profit Revenue from 
operations

4.61%

Earning before
interest and taxes

Investment Income 
Through P & L + 
Investment Income 
Through OCI

Capital employed

Average invested 
funds

3.55%

3.03%

2.85%

14.29%

24.63%

Net profit ratio 
(in %)

-78.80%Return on investment 
(in %)

Due to changes in fair valuation

Equity

Total debt service
(Finance Cost +
Principal repayment
of long term
borrowing during the 
year)
Average shareholder
equity

Average inventory

Average Trade
receivables

Return on equity 
(in %)

Inventory Turnover Ratio 
(in times)

Trade receivables turnover 
ratio (in times)

Trade payables turnover 
ratio (in times)

Net capital turnover ratio 
(in times)

Denominator

Current liabilities

Return on capital  
employed (in %)

Name of the Ratio

Current assets

Total debt

Earnings available for
debtservice(Netprofit
after taxes +
depreciation &
Amortization +
Finance Cost)
Total Comprehensive 
Income for the year

Sale of products

Sale of products

Net purchases

Revenue from 
operations

Numerator

Current Ratio 
(in times)

Debt - Equity Ratio 
(in times)

Debt Service coverage  
ratio (in times)

stNotes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023
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50  The Company has investment of . 980 lakhs (Previous Year . 980 lakhs) in Compo Advics India Private Limited, a Joint Venture Company ₹ ₹
which has accumulated losses of . 1,370.86 lakhs (Previous Year . 1,287.29 lakhs), being Companys' Share i.e. 49%. In view of the ₹ ₹
accumulated losses, there is diminution in the value of Company’s investments in the Joint Venture company and hence full value of investment 
of . 980 Lakhs has been marked down to Zero. However, considering the investment is of long term and strategic in nature no amount pertaining ₹
to this investment has been written off.                        



53  Other Disclosures                       
 
 a) No  proceeding  has  been  initiated  or  pending  against  the  Company  for  holding  any  Benami  property under the Benami Transactions 
  (Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended, and rules made thereunder in the current or previous financial years.                       
                         
 b) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.                      
 
 c) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous financial year.                      
 
 d) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered and disclosed as income during the year in 
  the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the current and previous financial year.                        
                        
 e) The  Company  has  not  advanced  or  loaned  to  or  invested  in  funds  to  any  other  person(s)  or  entity(is),  including foreign  entities 
  (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:                       
                         
  (I) directly  or  indirectly  lend  to  or  invest  in  other  persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
   (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or                      
                         
  (ii) p       rovide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.                      
 
 f) The  Company  has  not  received  any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
  (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:                       
                         
  (i) directly or indirectly lend to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
    (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or                      
                         
  (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.                      
                         
 g) The  Company  has  not been  declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender in the current and previous financial 
  year.                       
                         
                         
 h) The  Company  does  not  have  any  subsidiary  as  defined in section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the current and previous financial 
  years.                       
                         
                         
 I) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangment which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial years.                       
                         
 J) There  are  no  loans  or  advances  in the nature of loan granted to promotors, directors, KMP and / or their relatives in the current or previous 
  financial years which are repayable on demand or without specifying any term or period for repayment.                       
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52 Relationship with Struck Off companies

Details of struck off companies with whom the Company has transaction during the year or outstanding balance:

Name of Struck off Company Nature 

Electro Diesel Pvt Ltd Unclaimed Dividend Shares held by Struck off Company

Jermin Investments Pvt Ltd Unclaimed Dividend Shares held by Struck off Company

Kuber Bhandar (India) Limited Unclaimed Dividend Shares held by Struck off Company

Universial Asbestos Mfg Co P Ltd Unclaimed Dividend Shares held by Struck off Company

Wheelaway Motor Private Ltd Unclaimed Dividend Shares held by Struck off Company

Bolshoi Investment Pvt Ltd Unclaimed Dividend Shares held by Struck off Company

* Unclaimed dividend - Amounts are below ₹. 1 thousand and the percentage of shares held by the struck off Companies are less than 1 %of the total 
shareholding of the Company.

Year Ended  
st31  March, 2023

0.00*

0.00*

0.00*

0.00*

0.00*

Year Ended  
st31  March, 2022

0.00*

0.00*

0.00*

Nature of transactions with struck-

off Company

0.00* 0.00*

0.00*

0.00*

stNotes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023
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54 Corporate Social Responsibility:

Particulars

(a) Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013

(b) Amount Spent during the year

i) Construction/Acquisition of assets

ii) On purpose other than above

(c) Excess amount spent under section 135 (5)

Carried forward Opening Balance Excess/(Short)

Amount required to be spent during the year

Actual amount spent/incurred during the year

Carried forward Closing Balance Excess/(Short)

(d) Nature of CSR activities

(e)

Year Ended  
st

31  March, 2022

                                  -   

Year Ended  
st

31  March, 2023

                            64.34 

                           60.00 

                                  -   

                            70.00 

                                   -   

                           60.00 

                                  -   

                                   -   

                            70.00 

                                   -   

                                   -   

                                   -   

                                  -   

                                  -   

 (₹. In Lakhs) 

                           53.39 

55

Signatures to Notes 1 to 55 which form an integral part of the financial statements. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hindustan Composites Limited

Raghu Mody P.K. Choudhary

Chairman Managing Director

(DIN No. 00053329) (DIN No. 00535670)

Sunil JindalPlace: Mumbai 

Chief Financial Officer
thDate: 26  May 2023

Previous years’ figures have been regrouped/reclassified where ever necessary to conform to current years’ classification.

stNotes of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31  March, 2023
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Contribution to PM Cares Fund for Social economic 
development & relief  , welfare of the schedule cast. 
tribes, other backward classes, minorities and 
women.       

Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant 
Accounting Standard               
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